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STEPHEN P.LAFFEY

MAYOR JEROME I. BARON

DIRECTOR

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
- 869 PARK AVENUE
CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND 02910

December 18, 2006

Honorable Mayor Stephen P. Laffey
and Members of the Cranston City Council
Cranston, Rhode Istand

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Cranston for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, is
submitted herewith. This report was prepared by the City's Finance Department. Responsibility for both the accuracy
of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
City. We believe the information, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner
designed to fairly set forth the ﬁnanc1a! position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial
activity of its various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
City's financial affairs have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical and
Single Audit.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the management of the City. Management of the City is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to
ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the calculation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material
respects and are reported in a manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of operations as measured by
the financial activity of its various funds. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
City’s financial activities have been included.

Kostin, Ruffkess & Company, LLC, a public accounting firm fully licensed and qualified to perform audits of
municipalities within the State of Rhode Island, have audited the financial statements. The goal of the independent audit
was (o provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Cranston, Rhode Island for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the
City of Cranston’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, are fairly presented in conformity with
GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

(401) 780 3248 TDD 785 2036




PROFILE OF THE CITY OF CRANSTON

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit”
designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements
require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the
audited government’s interal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on intemal controls
and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the Single Audit
Section of this report.

General

The City was established as a City in 1754 and incorporated as a City in 1910. With a population of 79,267 as
determined by the 2000 U.S. Census, the City is the third most populous municipality in the State of Rhode
Island (the “State”). Primarily a residential community, the City contains many fine developments including
Dean Estates, Glenwoods, Woodridge, Garden Hills, Garden City and Comstock Gardens.

Government

The City operates under a home rule charter adopted in 1962 (the “Charter”), providing for a mayor/council form
of government with a nine-member City Council headed by a Council President. The Charter vests all
legislative powers of the City in the City Council, including the ordering of any tax, the making of
appropriations and the transacting of any other business pertaining to the financial affairs of the City.

Cranston is located immediately south of Rhode Island's Capitol. The City covers an area of almost 30 square
miles, stretching from Narragansett Bay in the east to the Town of Scituate in the west. It is bordered on the
north by Providence and Johnston and on the south by Warwick, West Warwick and Coventry.

The two main arteries that pass through the City are Routes I-95 and I-295. These interstate multi-lane
highways run north-south through the City. They provide direct access to Providence and other major cities such
as Boston (45 minutes north) and New York (3.5 hours south). Most of Rhode Island's hundreds of miles of
scenic coastline are within a half-hour’s drive. The City is also just minutes away from the State’s T.F. Green
Airport located in the City of Warwick.

Cranston has one of the best educational systems in the state. It has well-maintained housing, modern
recreational facilities and active civic organizations. Its reputation as a comfortable, prosperous city makes it
one of the most attractive areas in New England for both commercial and residential settlement.

Cranston is a city of contrasts, Heavily populated in the east, it remains largely rural in the west. Although
Cranston was incorporated as a city over 90 years ago, it never developed a true urban character. The
neighborhoods, which together constitute Cranston, maintain their rustic charm and separate small-town
warmth.

Government Services

Public Safety. The City’s Police Department consists of 189 employees and the City’s Fire Department consists
of 208 employees.

Sewer System. Construction of the City’s sewer system began as a Works Progress Administration project in
193% and is continually being upgraded to meet the City’s needs. This system consists entirely of sanitary
sewers. Storm water is carried in a separate drainage system. The sewer system includes an estimated 260
miles of sewer mains, eight miles of force main, as well as many miles of lateral sewers.




Government Services (Continued)

There are 22 pumping stations in the sewer system. The eastern half of the City is entirely sewered.
Northwestern Cranston is partially sewered with newer sewers built after 1972. The pumping stations are
presently in the design stage of an ongoing rehabilitation program being funded through the State of Rhode
Isiand Clean Water Finance Agency. The extension of the sewer system into newly developed areas of
southwestern Cranston was the subject of a $500,000 federally funded U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Feasibility
Study.

Wastewater Treatment Facility. The Cranston Wastewater Treatment Plant is located in eastern Cranston on the
Pawtuxet River. In 2005, the average daily flow to the plant was 12 million gallons per day. The facility has a
capacity of treating up to 23 million gallons per day which is projected to serve the City’s needs until 2019. The
current facility, which went on line in 1983, replaced an older facility originally built in 1942. The wastewater
treatment units include: preliminary treatment (two grit removal tanks and two induced air, grease flotation
tanks), primary settling (three center feed circular clarifiers), and disinfection (one chiorine contact tank).
Sludge collected from the clarifiers is dewatered by three presses and incinerated in two multiple hearth
incinerators. The treatment plant accepts municipal sludge from other communities for a fee and also accepts
residential septage from private haulers for a fee.

On September 11, 1997, the City commenced leasing its wastewater treatment system for a base term of 25
years to Triton Ocean State LLC (*“Triton™) pursuant to a Lease and Service Agreement (the “LSA”). On
December 31, 2001, Triton delegated its rights and obligations under the LSA to U.S. Filter Operating Services,
Inc. (the “Company”) and the LSA was amended and extended for five years. The City will remain the owner
of the system. The Company is obligated to finance and make regulatory capital improvements to the
wastewater treatment system and to operate, maintain, repair and replace the system. Triton made an up-front
contract payment to the City of $48,000,000. The City is required to pay the Company monthly fees for
performance of the Company’s obligations under the LSA. It is anticipated that the source of monthly payments
to the Company by the City will be sewer user fees assessed upon users by the City. The City continues to be
responsible for assessing and collecting such sewer user fees. Sewer user fees are set by City ordinance.

In August 1999, the City eniered into an agreement with Florida Power & Light where Florida Power & Light
agreed to purchase up to 5 million gallons of the treatment plant’s effluent. A $14 million improvement
program at the treatment plant was completed in 2001. The program improved the quality of the treated effluent
from a secondary to a tertiary treatment system. These enhancements were required of the Company under the
LSA, were funded by the Company, and are consistent with state and federal requirements. During 2005 to
2006, two major capital improvements were performed at the treatment plant. This included a $5.9 million
Biological Nitrogen Removal (BNR) system upgrade which will allow the City to meet the new RIDEM permit
limits imposed on our facility. The second project was a $2.5 million Flue Gas Recirculation (FGR)
improvement to the facility incinerators in order to improve the air quality from the incinerator stacks to stay
within permit limits while allowing for additional volume through the system. Funding for the BNR was
obtained through State of Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency loan for $3.4 million and Pawtuxet River
Authority grant for $2.5 million.

Under the terms of the agreement, US Filter made a $2.7 million payment to the City on April 1, 2002, and
made payments of $55,000 in 2004.




Planning and Development

Water Supply System. The City’s water supply needs in the eastern portion of Cranston are served by the
Providence Water Supply Board which services the majority of the City’s residences and businesses. The Kent
County Water Authority services a small number of residences in the southwest portion of the City. The western
Cranston Water Supply System, which formerly serviced approximately 2,200 residences in the western portion
of the City, was transferred in 1997 to the Providence Water Supply Board. As part of that transfer, the
Providence Water Supply Board agreed to make payments to the City equal to the City’s debt service on its
outstanding Water Bonds. The Providence system derives its supply from the Scituate Reservoir and five
tributary reservoirs located in the Town of Scituate. The entire watershed for these reservoirs covers 93 square
miles with the reservoirs themselves comprising 24 square miles and storing over 41 billion gallons of water.
The water supply and the distribution systems within Cranston will service the water supply needs of the City
for the foreseeable future. To provide adequate supply for future growth of the western portion of the City,
plans are being developed by the Providence Water Supply Board for the expansion of existing storage tanks
and increasing pumping capacity.

The City has had a Planning Commission since 1934. The City Planning Commission consists of the City’s
Finance Director, its Public Works Director, a member of the City Council and four members appointed from
the general public. The City’s Planning Department has a planning staff of five full-time employees and an
office of Economic Development, consisting of two full-time employees.

The City originally adopted a Comprehensive Plan in 1961, revised it in 1992, and they are currently in the final
stages of completing the 2006 revision. The purpose of the Comprehensive Plan is to lend direction to the
development of the City in areas of commercial and industrial development, traffic circulation, residential
growth, schools, recreation and municipal services. The City Planning Commission has also adopted a five-year
Capital Improvement Program. The City has amended its zoning, subdivision and land use controls to protect
environmental resources and to encourage economic development.

Retirement Programs

The City provides pension benefits to substantially all municipal employees under three separate plans. The
retirement plans for teachers, municipal employees, and certain personnel employed by the police and fire
departments are administered by the State’s Retirement Board. The City pays the entire annual employer’s cost
of the municipal employees’ retirement plan and 50 percent of the annual employer’s cost of the teachers’
retirement plan. The pension plan of the City’s Police and Fire Department employees hired before July 1,
1995, is administered by the City and is funded on a combined fund contribution and pay-as-you-go basis. The
annual contribution to the general municipal employees’ retirement plan is based upon an actuarial
determination to provide for current service cost and amortization of past service cost.

FACTOR AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION
Population

Ranked third in population among the 39 cities and towns in the State in 2000, the City experienced a 4.2%
increase in population from 1990 to 2000.




FACTOR AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION (CONTIONUED)

Unemployment

The most recent labor market information summary indicates that annualized unemployment for the years
indicated was as shown in the following table:

Annualized
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
City of Cranston........ 52% 52% 50% 44% 4.0% 42% 4.6% 50% 58% 52%
State of Rhode Island 5.1 5.1 4.9 4.1 4.1 4.4 5.1 53 5.2 5.0
United States............. 5.4 49 4.5 4.2 4.0 4.8 5.8 6.0 5.5 5.1

Source: Rhode Island Department of Labor and Training.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The City of Cranston places a high priority on economic development initiatives in order to solicit and secure
new businesses as well as give continual support to the improvement of the City’s present business community,
improving the City’s tax base and the employment opportunities for Cranston residents. The City has
successfully implemented aggressive business recruitment and expansion programs and has reinvested heavily
in its urban business corridors. Through a variety of forward thinking legislative initiatives, the City offers
comprehensive investment incentives to increase the viability of new and existing development areas.

The City has a commitment to the economic development in all of its available areas and strives to achieve a
balance between appropriate land use and bringing higher quality jobs and living standards to its residents. With
the assistance of the City's Department of Economic Development, the City has been a leader in bringing
industrial and commercial development to its numerous sites over the past decade. Convenient highway access,
ample water and sewer services, and a tradition of excellent municipal services combine to provide the type of
environment that the business community seeks when considering expansion or relocation.

Industrial Parks

Howard Industrial Park, located at the interchange of Interstate Route 95 and State Route 37, was the City's
major economic development success story of the 1970s and 1980s. This location is home to 38 companies with
a workforce of more than 3,000. Premiere national and international companies like Ross Simons and
Swarovski help to identify this area as one of the premier industrial parks in the State.

Western Cranston Industrial Area - Currently, this is not only Cranston’s but one of the State of Rhode Island’s
fastest developing industrial parks, located centrally in the State at an interchange of Interstate Route 295 and
Route 14. This area continues to develop and become a generator of monies as part of the City’s important
industrial tax base. Nationally recognized companies like Con-Way Trucking, who operates a major new
terminal on 13 acres, and Bay State Florist, an international floral exporter, are just a few of the many industrial
tenants that have been attracted to this ever growing industrial area. Approximately 85 acres of fully serviced
industrial land with excellent highway access remain available for development.




LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING (CONTINUED)

Garden City Shopping Center Renovation

Originally developed in the 1950s, the Garden City Shopping Center was the first suburban shopping center in
the State. The second phase of a $20 million renovation and expansion project was completed several years ago.
This revitalized retail area is the site of numerous public activities and a source of considerable civic pride.
Continual renovations of some of the older shopping areas are ongoing. Jan Co, a highly successful food service
provider, has plans to upscale the former Newport Creamery Restaurant into one of their new Café Newport
Shops.

Chapel View Shopping Center

Located directly across from Garden City, this new upscale mixed use shopping group, coupled with the many
high guality stores of its next door neighbor, will establish this area of Cranston as one of the leading shopping
centers of not only the State but the Southeastern New England region. Located on the former site of the State’s
Youth Training and Reform school, the developers have used a number of the former historic structures, all over
one hundred years old, to develop a European Village atmosphere that will have extensive upscale
condominiums, office space and retail components. Current tenants include a recently finished Shaw’s
Superstore Market, the largest and newest for the food chain in this area. When completed, this area wili be
home to over 368,000 square feet of retail and living space.

Recent Development Initiatives

Cranston Parkade - The long awaited redevelopment of the 77-acre former Narragansett Brewery property is
completed. The Brewery Parkade has over 400,000 square feet of retail shopping area including such well-
known retailers as Lowe’s, Kmart, A.J. Wright, Super Stop & Shop, and several smaller stores. Phase II, the
office development phase, has begun with a new 120,000 square foot complex to house the Katherine Gibbs
School, which opened in January 2004 and accommodates over 1,500 attending students. National restaurant
chain, Texas Roadhouse, constructed what has become a very successful facility. The developers are currently
constructing a building that will become a new state-of-the art Police Headquarters and Municipal Court for the
City of Cranston. Additional office buildings are currently in the planning stages and seven acres of additional
open space has been added with the razing of the former Trolley Barn, which was part of the original Brewery
Site. This substantial and visible economic redevelopment effort along Route 10 is proving to be a catalyst for
the redevelopment of other nearby former industrial sites.

Western Cranston Office/Retail Development - Taking advantage of a vacant 100-acre parcel at the interchange
of Interstate Route 295 and State Route 14, the City revised its zoning of the site to approve the construction of a
200,000 square foot retail complex and a 300,000 square foot office park. The construction of the retail
component of this development is completed, and is anchored by a Wal-Mart department store. The office park
will offer corporate office clients a landscaped business environment in a campus-like setting. Two new banks
have recently been added to this development and 108 units of apartment housing are also nearing completion at
this site bringing together all of the latest components of mixed use development.

Citizens Bank Expansion - The Citizens Bank technology service center, located in the former Davol Company,
is already the City’s single largest office employer. Citizens Bank has continued its major expansion of 90,000
square feet and another 800 jobs at this Cranston facility. Located in close proximity to both the Chapel View
and the Garden City Shopping Centers, it provides an excellent complement to the retail and service
establishments located nearby.




LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING (CONTINUED)

Tasca Ford Lincoln Mercury - Nationwide the largest Ford dealership, Tasca recently expanded its Regional
headquarters in Cranston. The project resulted in the redevelopment of some additional State property as well as
a vacant industrial building to create a state-of-the-art Ford Lincoln Mercury Dealership and Service Center that
is a model for other Ford dealerships throughout the United States.

Taco Manufacturing Expansion - A well known industrial/commercial valve and pump producer with
worldwide distribution, is currently undergoing an expansion to increase the size of its facility from 40,000
square feet to over 200,000 square feet. The expansion will allow Taco to consolidate all of its operations to one
central location. This expansion is a further example of the revitalization of the Cranston Street area.

Cash Management

The intention of the cash management system is to limit the amount of funds placed in accounts where low or no
interest is paid. Idle cash is invested in various instruments with various maturity dates, depending on the
anticipated cash requirements during the period.

Risk Management

The City is self-insured in most areas of risk, subject to certain third party “stop loss™ coinsurance. Self-insured
risks include general liability, property and casualty, workers’ compensation, unemployment and employee
health and life insurance claims. The City’s Counsel defends the City in any lawsuits that arise from the normal
course of operations.

The City’s heaith insurance program provides coverage to the City’s employees and retirees through Blue Cross
- Blue Shield of Rhode Island (BC/BS), United Health and Delta Dental of RI. The City’s program is a self-
insured program with BC/BS, United Health and Delta Dental of RI acting as third-party agents for the City in
the payment of the various claim plans used by the City.

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors
and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The City established the Cranston Insurance and
Risk Management Commission (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its uwninsured risks of loss.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cranston for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report.
This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Finance
City of Cranston, Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cranston, Rhode
Island, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the City's
management. Cur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Cranston, Rhode Island, as of June 30, 2006, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 2006,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal confrol over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The Management Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Funding Progress - Cranston Retirement System and
budgetary comparison information on pages 14 through 31 and pages 72 through 74, respectively, are not a
required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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City of Cranston, Rhode Island
Page Two

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Cranston, Rhode Island’s basic financial statements. The introductory section and the
accompanying financial information listed as supplemental schedules in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
fund financial statements and other schedules as listed in the table of contents have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The infroductory section and
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

%ﬂwl%&f%w,m— i

New London, Connecticut
December 18, 2006
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STEPHEN P. LAFFEY

MAYOR JEROME I. BARON

DIRECTOR

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
- 869 PARK AVENUE
CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND 02910

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the City of Cranston’s (the “City’s”) financial
performance provides an overview of the City’s financial activities. It is designed to assist the reader in
focusing on significant financial issues that the City has encountered.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting
changes and currently known facts, please read it in con_]unctlon with the Transmittal Letter and the City’s
financiai statements.

HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Highlights

o The City’s net assets increased by $4.2 million (or 36.2%). The governmental net assets increased by
$2.5 million (or 11.0%) and the business-type net assets increased by $1.8 million (or 5.1%).

» The governmental activities revenue increased $3.9 million (or 1.7%) and the net results from activities
decreased by $4.4 million (or 63.7%). In 2006, the results of activities produced an increase in net
assets of $2.5 million and in 2005, the results of activities produced an increase in net assets of $6.9
million.

e The business-type activities revenue increased by $1.7 miilion (or 8.7%) and the net results from
activities decreased by $0.3 million (or 16.8%). In 2006, the results of activities produced an increase
in business-type net assets of $1.8 million, while in 2005, the results of activities produced an increase
of $2.1 million in business-type net assets.

e The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected on a current financial resource basis reports an
increase in fund balance of $0.3 million (or 1.7%), compared to an increase of $3.5 million in the prior
year.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit A) and the
Statement of Activities (Exhibit B) provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a
longer-term view of the City’s finances. For governmental activities, the fund financial statements tell how
these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial
statements also report the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements by
providing information about the City’s most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial
information about activities for Wthh the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of
the government.

(401) 780 3248

TDD 785 2036
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Reporting the City as a Whole

One of the most important questions asked about the City’s finances is, “Is the City as a whole better off or
worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities
report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These two statements report the City’s net assets and
changes in them. You can think of the City’s net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities, as one
way to measure the City’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s
net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to
consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the City’s property tax base, to assess the
overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, we divide the City into three kinds of activities:

e (Governmental Activities - Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including police, fire,
public works, parks and recreation and general administration. Property taxes, state appropriations and
miscellaneous departmental revenue finance most of these activities.

» Business-type activities - The City’s sewer system is a fee based system. The City charges a fee to the
users of the system to help cover all or most of the cost associated with operating the systemn.

e Component units - The City includes in its report Public Facilities Management Foundation, a separate
legal entity, from which the City leases its public works facility. Although legally separate, this
“component unit” is important because the City is financially accountable for it. A separately issued
financial statement may be obtained by contacting the Finance Director of the City of Cranston.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Our analysis of the City’s major funds is included in the fund financial statements and provides detailed
information about the most significant funds, not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established
by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control
and manage money for particular purposes (like the construction of the Briggs Farm recreational facility} or to
show that it is meeting legal responsibility for using certain taxes, grants and other money (like grants received
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development). The City’s two types of funds, governmental
and proprietary, use different accounting approaches.

» Governmental funds - Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
City’s programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in
reconciliations at the bottom of the fund financial statements.

15




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds (Continued)

e Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides-whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City-these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds {(a component of proprietary
funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. Internal
service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) are used to report activities that provide
services for the City’s other programs and activities-such as the Insurance and Risk Management Fund.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The City as Trustee

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Police and Fire Employees’ Pension of the City of Cranston. It is
also responsible for other assets that (because of a trust arrangement) can be used only for the trust
beneficiaries. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Staternents of Fiduciary Net Assets
and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. These activities are excluded from the City’s other financial statements
because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purpose.

Statement of Net Assets

Included below is a condensed Statement of Net Assets for the City of Cranston. The condensed format allows
the reader to view the gverall financial position of the City.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

As of June 30
(In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2006 005 006 2005 006 2005
Assets:
Current and other assets............. $ 839 $ 619 $ 120 $237 $ 959 $85.6
Capital assets ........cccevvcecceneenene 102.8 1054 70.6 69.6 173.4 175.0
Total assefs.............ccoeuvevnenenn. 186.7 167.3 82.6 933 269.3 260.6
Liabilities:
Long-term debt outstanding....... 188.9 166.8 11.6 7.8 200.5 174.6
Other liabilities ........cevvvrrvrene 18.0 24.3 348 51.1 52.8 75.4
Total liabilities ............cevni.. 206.9 191.1 46.4 58.9 2533 250.0
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of debt...ovvrccviireiriirenin 12.9 36.7 62.8 61.8 75.7 98.5
Restricted...orviiiiniiiiieniininins 9.5 1.8 0.5 11.3 0.5
Unrestricted (deficit) ....occcveenn {42.6) (60.5) (28.4) (27.9) {71.01 (88.4)
Total net assets...........e....... $ (20.2) 5023.8) 3362 3344 3160 $10.6

The composition of net assets and the changes in net assets over a period of time serves as a useful indicator of
the City’s financial position. The City’s assets at June 30, 2006, exceed liabilities by $16.0 million. Of the net
assets, $(71.0) million are Unrestricted Net Assets. The City’s net assets are comprised of $(20.2) million from
governmental activities and $36.2 million from business-type activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Condensed Statement of Net Assets (Continued)

“Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt” comprises $75.7 and $98.5 million of net assets at June 30,
2006 and 2005, respectively. This category reflects the total invested in capital assets (vehicles, equipment,
etc.) net of any related debt used to acquire capital assets. These capital assets are used to provide services to
citizens and do not represent resources available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Normal Impacts

There are six basic (normal) transactions that will affect the comparability of the Net Assets summary
presentation:

Net Results of Activities - which will impact (increase/decrease) current assets and unrestricted net assets.
Borrowing for Capital - which will increase current assets and long-term debt.

Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital - which will reduce current assets and increase capital assets.
There is a second impact, an increase in invested in capital assets and an increase in related net debt which will
not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Spending of Non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital - which will (a) reduce current assets and
increase capital assets and (b) reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Principal Payment on Debt - which will (a) reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt and (b) reduce
unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Reduction of Capital Assets through Depreciation - which will reduce capital assets and invested in capital
assets, net of debt.

The second category of net assets, Restricted Net Assets, represents net assets that are subject to external
restriction on how they may be used. Restricted Net Assets totaled $9.5 million for governmental activities and
$1.8 million for business-type activities. These consisted predominantly of construction commitments for
existing capital projects of $9.0 million in governmental activities and $1.2 million in business-type activities.
Additionally, in business-type activities, these restrictions consisted of cash reserves required by bond
agreement totaling $.5 million.

Governmental Activities-Condensed Statements of Net Assets

June 30, 2006

The major component of the “Current and Other Assets” category is “Cash and Cash Equivalents” of $23
million. This category is also comprised of “Investments” of $44 million. “Cash and Cash Equivalents”
decreased $22.2 million due to assets being placed in longer term investments and, therefore, reclassified as
investments on the statement. Investments increased by $44 million due to the investment strategy described
and the issuance of $23.9 million in bonds in June 2006.

“Capital Assets” totaling $102.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation) represents the City’s investment in
capital assets necessary to provide services to the residents of the City of Cranston. The major categories of
fixed assets consist of land, land improvements, equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure.

“QOther Liabilities™” decreased by $6.3 million due to a decrease in unearned revenue from uncollected property
taxes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Governmental Activities-Condensed Statements of Net Assets (Continued)
June 30. 2066

The “Long-Term Debt Outstanding™ at fiscal year end was $188.9 million, of which $91.1 million consisted of
general obligation bonds, leases payable, and certificates of participation. The proceeds from these obligations
were used to fund various capital projects (such as school construction and playground construction and
improvements). The City issued $23.9 million of general obligation bonds during fiscal year 2006.

Total Net Assets at June 30, 2006 was comprised of “Unrestricted Net Assets” of $(42.6) million with the
balance consisting of “Restricted”” of $9.5 million and “Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt” of $12.9
million.

June 30, 2005

The major component of the “Current and Other Assets™ category consists of “Net Taxes Receivable” of $3.1
million. This category is also comprised of “Cash and Cash Equivalents” of $45.3 million and other receivables
totaling $8.1 million.

“Capital Assets” totaling $105.4 million (net of accurnulated depreciation) represents the City’s investment in
capital assets necessary to provide services to the residents of the City of Cranston. The major categories of
fixed assets consist of land, land improvements, equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure.

The “Long-Term Debt Outstanding” at fiscal year end was $166.8 million, of which $68.7 million consisted of
general obligation bonds, leases payable and certificates of participation. The proceeds from these obligations
were used to fund various capital projects (such as the construction of the new Briggs Farm recreational
facility). The City issued $22.3 million of refunding general obligation bonds during fiscal year 2005.

Total net assets at June 30, 2005, are comprised of “Unrestricted Net Assets” at $(60.5) million with the balance
of invested in capital assets net of related debt of $36.7 million.

Business-Tvpe Activities-Condensed Statements of Net Assets

June 30, 2006

For business-type activities, such as the Sewer Enterprise Fund, there are two major components of “Current
and Other Assets”. “Cash and Cash Equivalents” of $5.1 million were available to support the current
operations of the sewer plant. The remaining balance of $6.9 million consists primarily of “Other Assets”.
“Other Assets” consists mainly of receivables totaling $2.7 million, a lease payment receivable of $3.5 million
and restricted cash of $.5 million.

“Capital Assets” totaling $70.6 million represents the City’s investment, net of related debt, in land, buildings,
machinery and equipment and motor vehicles for use by the Sewer and School Lunch Enterprise Funds.

“Long-Term Debt” Obligations of $11.6 million represents amounts due for general obligation bonds used to
finance the capital operations of the Sewer Plant as well as SRF (state revolving fund) loan from Rhode Island
Clean Water Finance Agency. “Other Liabilities” consisted primarily of “Unearned Revenue” of $31.4 million
and $3.3 million of “Accounts Payable”, and $0.2 million of other miscellancous payables.

“Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt” is the major component of net assets for business-type
activities at a total of $62.8 million. As stated above, in the government-wide analysis of the Statement of Net
Assets, the total of $1.8 million is for “Restricted Net Assets”. The balance of $(28.4) million comprises
“Unrestricted Net Assets”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Business-Type Activities-Condensed Statements of Net Assets

June 30, 2005

For business-type activities such as the Sewer Enterprise Fund, there are three major components of “Current
and Other Assets”. “Sewer Assessment and User Fees” of $14.0 million consisted of the fiscal year 2005
billing and prior year receivables. “Cash and Cash Equivalents” of $3.1 million were available to support the
current operations of the sewer plant. The remaining balance of $6.6 million consists primarily of “Other
Receivables”.

“Capital Assets” totaling $69.6 million represents the City’s investment, net of related debt, in land, buildings,
machinery and equipment and motor vehicies for use by the Sewer and School Lunch Enterprise Funds. “Long-
Term Debt Obligation™ represents amounts due for general obligation bonds used to finance the capital
operations of the Sewer Plant as well as SRF (state revolving fund) loan from Rhode Island Clean Water
Finance Agency. “Other Liabilities” consisted primarily of “Uneamned Revenue” of $47.4 million and $3.6
million of “Accounts Payable”, and $0.05 million of other miscellaneous payables.

Net assets “Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt” is the major component of net assets for business-
type activities at a total of $61.8 million. As stated above, in the government-wide analysis of the Statement of
Net Assets, the total of $0.5 million is for “Restricted Net Assets”. The balance of $(27.9) million comprises
“Unrestricted Net Assets™.

Statement of Activities

A condensed Statement of Activities for the City of Cranston is presented below listing the major categories of
revenues and expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005.

Condensed Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30 (In Millions)

Total Primary
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Government
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services.......c..coovueureunnne $ 172 $ 151 $18.5 $18.0 $35.7 $33.1
Operating grants and
1070} 13 170 13T0) o S 51.7 53.6 1.1 1.0 52.8 54.6
Capital grants and
Contributions ...c.oevvevvveccicienriennee 0.1 03 2.0 0.8 2.1 1.1
General Revenues:
Property taxes .....coovivvererererverrennes 159.0 158.6 159.0 158.6
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs...... 5.6 3.2 5.6 32
Unrestricted investment earnings ... 2.3 1.2 0.2 0.3 2.5 1.5
Total revenues................ccc..... 2359 2320 21.8 20.1 257.7 252.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Statement of Activities (Continued)

Total Primary
Govermnmental Activities Business-Type Activities Government

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Program Expenses:
General government..........c.eeeeeee... 10.0 15.8 10.0 15.8
Public safety ...oocoveeeeeeeeeeee 66.1 61.2 66.1 61.2
Public works ...cooveecceerer e 12.4 12.5 124 12.5
Parks and recreation.........coeeevernene. 2.4 21 2.4 2.1
Libraries...ccccoiveereveveverrnserenrcvesnens 2.8 28 2.3 2.8
Education.........ccoccvrverrecverenrcrreenene 128.5 1233 128.5 1233
SENIOr SEIVICES cuvvvrrereirreireriarcriassnns 2.6 2.6 2.6 2.6
(8711 29 2.9 2.9 2.9
Community development................ 2.0 1.6 2.0 1.6
SEWEL .ottt 17.1 15.1 17.1 15.1
Interest and other costs ..cvvevcerineen. 6.6 3.2 6.6 32
Total expenses.......................... 2334 225.1 20.0 18.0 2534 243.1
Change in net assets ...............cooe.n. 2.5 6.9 1.8 2.1 4.3 9.0
Net assets — July 1,( as restated) ...... (22.7 (30.7) 34.4 32.3 11.7 1.6
Net assets —June 30........................ $(20.2) $(23.8) $36.2 $34.4 $ 16.0 5106

The Condensed Statement of Net Assets presents revenues, expenses and changes in net assets separately for
governmental activities and business-type activities. The condensed format allows for presentation of Program
Revenues (Charges for Services, Operating Grants and Contributions and Capital Grants and Contributions)
followed by a listing of General Revenues to support the City’s overall government or business-type activities.
Expenses are presented on a functional basis, with depreciation on fixed assets directly allocated to the related
expense.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities-Condensed Statement of Activities

As noted above, there are two categories of revenue on the Statement of Activities - “Program Revenues” and
“General Revenues”. “Program Revenues” are derived directly from the program itself or from parties outside
the City’s taxpayers or citizenry and, as a whole, reduce the net cost of the function to be financed from the
City’s “General Revenues”. “Program Revenues” are further divided into “Charge for Services”, “Operating
Grants and Contributions” and “Capital Grants and Contributions”.

“General Revenues” include all revenues not required to be reported as “Program Revenue”. The “Other
General Revenues” of $166.9 and $163.0 million includes $159.0 and $158.6 million in property taxes for the
years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

“Program Expenses” are presented in the Condensed Statement of Activities by function and total $233.4 and
$225.1 million (including interest on long-term debt) for the fiscal years June 30, 2006 and 2005. Revenues
Iess expenses presented in this statement amount to change in the “Change of Net Assets” of $2.5 and $6.9
million for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Business-Type Activities — Condensed Statement of Activities

Business-Type Activities provided by the City of Cranston consists primarily of the operation of wastewater
facility commonly know as the Sewer Enterprise Fund. The majority of revenues for this fund consist of
“Program Revenues”. Each year every user is charged a fee that is captured in the “Charges for Services” sub-
category. In fiscal years 2006 and 2005, the City generated $18.5 and $18.0 million, respectively, in charges for
services.

The City reports the total amount of expenses for business-type activities as $20.0 and $18.0 million for the

fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The “Change in Net Assets™ (revenues less expenses)
for the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 were $1.8 and $2.1 million, respectively.

Analysis of Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital Project Funds and are
presented within the following fund financial statements:

Description of Financial Statement Exhibit
Balance Sheet C
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and D

Changes in Fund Balances

The basic proprietary funds financial statements for enterprise and internal service funds are presented within
the following statements:

Description of Financial Statement Exhibit
Statement of Net Assets F
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and G

Changes in Net Assets

Statement of Cash Flows H
Governmental Funds
The City of Cranston’s governmental fund consists of two major funds. The major funds are the City’s General
Fund and the School Department. Presented below is a condensed Balance Sheet for the two major funds of the

Governmental funds.

June 30, 2006

Combined fund balances for the Governmental Funds was $58.6 million. Fund balance was comprised of $49.1
million unreserved fund balances and $9.5 million reserved fund balances. Under the modified-accrual basis
for Fund Financial Statements, the emphasis is on accounting for current financial resources of the City. Assets
of $86.0 million include primarily $21.5 million in “Cash and Cash Equivalents”, $44.0 million in
“Investments”, $1.4 million in “Taxes Receivable”, $7.5 million in “Interfund Receivables”, $5.9 million “Due
From Other Governments” and the remaining $5.7 million in “Loans” and “Other Current Assets”. Liabilities
of $27.3 million consisted of $3.9 million in “Accounts Payable”, $7.7 million in “Due to Other Funds”, $9.4
million in “Unearned Income and Other”, and $6.3 million of other miscellaneous liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Governmental Funds (Continued)

June 30, 2005

The City’s governmental funds, consisting of the general fund, special revenue funds and the capital project
funds, were reported in “Statement B-1-Balance Sheet.” Combined fund balances for the Governmental Funds
was a surplus of $34.2 million. The surplus was comprised of $33.8 million unreserved fund balances, and $0.4
million reserved fund balances. Under the modified-accrual basis for Fund Financial Statements, the emphasis
is on accounting for current financial resources of the City. Assets of $203.4 million include primarily $43.3
million in “Cash and Cash Equivalents”, $143.4 million in “Taxes Receivable”, $6.0 million in “Interfund
Receivables”, $6.0 million “Due From Other Governments” and the remaining $4.7 million in “Investments”
and “Other Current Assets”. Liabilities of $169.2 million consist of $6.4 million in “Accounts Payable”, $7.1
million in “Due to Other Funds”, $150.3 million in "Unearned Income and Other", and the remaining $5.4
million in “Accrued Payroll”, “Accrued Interest”, “Accrued Liabilities”, “Retainage Payable” and “Other
Liabilities™.

Condensed Balance Sheet

As of June 30
(In Millions)
General School Total Major
Fund Department Funds
2006 2005 2006 005 2006 2005
Assets:
Current and other assets........ $37.5 $40.1 $5.2 $5.1 $42.7 $45.2
Total assets ..........uueeu....... 375 40.1 5.2 5.1 427 452
Liabilities:
Other Habilities ...cooveverecnenn. 17.6 20.5 37 4.1 21.3 24.6
Toral Liabilities.................. 17.6 20.5 3.7 4.1 21.3 24.6
Fund Balance:
Reserved ....coovvvrreccvvniennnnn 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.3
Unreserved........ooovvvveneneenne 19.9 19.6 1.1 0.7 21.0 20.3
Total fund balance............ $19.9 $ 196 $1.5 $1.0 $21.4 $ 206

General Fund - Condensed Balance Sheet

June 30, 2006

The “General Fund’s” total assets of $37.5 million consists primarily of $5.8 million in “Cash and Cash
Equivalents”, $23.6 million of “Investments”, $1.4 million of "Taxes Receivable", $1.6 million of “Due From
Other Funds”, $4.9 million of “Due From Other Governments™ and $0.2 million of other assets.

Total Liabilities for the General Fund were $17.6 million. “Accounts Payable” amounted to $2.5 million, $7.1
million represent “Unearned Income™, “Due to Other Funds” of $5.3 million, and $2.7 million in accrued
interest and liabilities.

The City’s “Fund Balance™ was $19.9 million, all of which was unreserved at June 30, 2006.

During the year “Cash and Cash Equivalents” decreased $25.0 million, “Investments” increased by $23.6
million, and “Accounts Payable” decreased $1.1 mleionz grom prior year.




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

General Fund - Condensed Balance Sheet (Continued)

June 30, 2005

The “General Fund’s” total assets of $40.1 million consists primarily of $30.8 million in “Cash and Cash
Equivalents”, $3.1 million of Taxes Receivables, $0.7 million of “Due From Other Funds™, and $5.2 million of
“Due From Other Governments."

Total Liabilities for the General Fund were $20.5 million. “Accounts Payable™ amounted to $3.6 million, $6.1
million in “Due to Other Funds”, $8.0 million represent “Uneamed Income and Other”, $0.9 million in “Other
Liabilities” and the remaining $1.9 million in accrued liabilities.

The City’s “Fund Balance™ was $19.6 million, all of which was unreserved at June 30, 2005.

Schogl Department - Condensed Balance Sheet
June 30, 2006

The School Department’s total assets were $5.2 million. The majority of that consisted of $1.2 million in “Cash
and Cash Equivalents”, $2.3 million in “Other Receivables”, $0.8 million of “Advance Deposits”, and $0.9 of
“Due From QOther Funds”.

Liabilities for the School Department totaled $3.7 million. The majority of that consisted of “Accounts
Payable” of $0.9 million and other liabilities of $2.8 million. The School Department had Fund Balance of $1.5
million. This was comprised of $0.4 million “Reserved Fund Balance” and a balance of $1.1 million in
“Unreserved Fund Balance” of which $0.9 million has been designated for specific purposes. For the prior
fiscal year, “Unreserved Fund Balance™ was $0.7 million and “Reserved Fund Balance” was $0.3 million, a
change of $0.4 million and $0.1 million, respectively.

June 30, 2005

The School Department’s total assets were $5.1 million. The majority of that consisted of $2.1 million in “Cash
and Cash Equivalents”, $1.5 million in “Other Receivables” and $1.5 million in “Other Current Assets™.

Liabilities for the School Department totaled $4.1 million. The majority of that consisted of “Accounts
Payable” of $2.1 million and other liabilities of $2.0 million. The School Department had Fund Balance of $1.0
million. This was comprised of $0.3 million “Reserved Fund Balance” and $0.7 million “Unreserved Fund
Balance™. For the prior fiscal year, “Unreserved Fund Balance” was $1.0 million and “Reserved Fund Balance™
was $0.6 million, a change of $(0.3) million and ${0.3) million, respectively.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

A condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the City of Cranston is
presented below listing the major categories of revenues and expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2006 and 2005. The major funds for the City of Cranston are the “General Fund” and the “School Department.”

The fund reporting format, also presented on a functional basis, exhibited in “Exhibit D - Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances™ presents all revenue types followed by the expenses
for the City. However, for the fund financial statements, the City reports only current year capital expenditures
and does not report depreciation on capital assets and reports principal payments on long-term liabilities only as
current year expenditure and not the related long-term liability as within the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. The major source of revenues comes from the “General Property Taxes” of $146.0 and $146.7
million, respectively. Total revenues for all governmental funds for the years ending June 30, 2006 and 2005
were $234.6 and $229.8 million, respectively. For the Governmental Funds, the total expenditures for the years
ending June 30, 2006 and 2005 were $234.4 and $226.4 million, respectively. For the year ended June 30,
2006, General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by2§73.6 million before other financing sources (uses).




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year Ended June 30
(In Millions)
Total Major
General Fund School Department Govemmental
2006 2005 2006 . 2005 2006 2005
Revenues:
General Revenues:
Property taxes .oeevverreereeererersereesesenns $146.0 $146.7 $146.0 $146.7
Intergovernmental...........c..ccoervveverenenns 10.0 7.1 $39.8 $34.9 49.8 42.0
Charges for services....cocvivnenerieesenianne 7.9 1.5 2.0 9.9 7.5
Investment INCOME.....ocvvveverriererareeriones 1.5 0.8 1.5 0.8
OhET ..ottt s 4.5 6.0 0.2 5.5 4.7 11.5
Total revenues.......oeecvveevcveecennnne, 169.9 i68.1 42.0 40.4 2119 208.5
Expenditures:
Current:
General government......covvveereveevirrennes 7.9 9.2 7.9 9.2
Public safety ....ccooeeeeverereeenirree e 58.9 58.5 58.9 58.5
Public WOIKS ....eovvevrreerreecnniccrereeeine, 12.5 12.2 12.5 12.2
Education ......cccccvveeeveveeceerenine e seeenenes 120.5 115.5 120.5 1155
Parks and recreation.....ovveicevnenrnnenns 2.1 1.9 2.1 1.9
Public lIbraries......ccvvverererrersrenrereeennns 2.8 2.7 2.8 2.7
SEIHOr SEIVICES .vevrvrvrerrenrinerressvessersisnes 2.5 2.4 25 2.4
(01157 TR 0.1 0.8 0.1 0.8
Debt Service:
Principal...c.ccooccenenvereececereece e 38 3.8 3.8 3.8
Interest and other costs ......cccceeuvenennee 5.7 33 57 33
Capital:
Capital expenditures ............coceevennes 0.3 0.3
Total expenditures............................ 96.3 95.1 120.5 115.5 216.8 210.6
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before other
financing sources (USes)..u.vvvevreerernnns 73.6 73.0 (78.5) (75.1) (4.9 (2.1)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in.....coceceeierieerececreceeceninesnnns 10.7 9.7 79.0 74.5 89.7 84.2
Transfers Out .......covevveevicrereierceseernennns (84.0) {79.2) (84.0) (79.2)
Net other financing sources .
(HSES) ..o erae e ranns (73.3) (69.5) 79.0 74.5 5.7 5.0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures
and Ofher USES ......ccveveereneeceeecnrieineine 0.3 335 0.5 0.6) 0.8 29
Fund balance July 1 ...........ocoeeneeennn. 19.6 16.1 1.0 1.6 20.6 17.7
Fund balance June 30 ........................... $ 199 $ 196 $ 1.5 § 1.0 $ 214 $ 206
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Review of Governmental Major Funds-Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances-General Fund

June 30, 2006

The City’s “General Fund” had revenues of $169.9 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. This was
comprised of $§146.0 million in “General Property Taxes”, $10.0 million of “Intergovernmental” revenues, $7.9
million in “Charges for Services”, $1.5 million in “Investment Income™, and $4.5 million in “Other” revenue.

Expenditures for the “General Fund” for fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 were $96.3 million. These
expenditures consisted of $7.9 million in “General Government” expenditures, $58.9 million of “Public Safety”
expenditores, $12.5 million of “Public Works” expenditures, $2.1 million of “Parks and Recreation”
expenditures, $2.8 million of “Public Libraries” expenditures, $2.5 million of “Senior Services” expenditures,
$0.1 miilion of “Other” expenditures, $3.8 million of “Debt Service Principal” expenditures, and $5.7 million of
“Interest and Other Costs™.

In addition to general operating expenses, the “General Fund” also had “Net Other Financing Uses™ of $(73.3)
million. This was composed of $(79.1) million transfer to the “School Department” and $(4.9) million transfers
to budget and hospital stabilization funds. This also included $10.7 million in “Transfers In” from “Other
Governmental Funds” for excise tax phase-out.

The “Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses” was $0.3 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. This was primarily due to the following:

¢ Increase in Intergovernmental Revenue of $2.9 million from excise tax phase out grants received from
the State of Rhode Island.

® Decrease in General Government Expenditures of $1.3 million.

e Increase in Debt Service Expenditures of $2.4 million due to primarily to a $2.1 million payment
related to retroactive pay due to employees associated with contract settlements.

» Increase in Net Transfers Out of $3.8 million due primarily to an increase in the transfer to the School
Department of $4.6 million a $1 million increase in transfers in from the Excise Tax Phase-Out Fund.

June 30, 2005

The City’s “General Fund” had revenues of $168.1 million for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2005. This was
comprised of $146.7 million in “General Property Taxes”, $7.1 million of “Intergovernmental” revenues, $3.6
million in “Licenses and Permits”, $1.7 million in *Fines and Forfeitures”, $0.8 million in “Investment
Income”, $2.2 million in “Departmental” revenue and $6.0 million in “Other” revenue.

Expenditures for the “General Fund” for fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 were $95.1 million. These
expenditures consisted of $9.2 million of “General Government” expenditures, $58.5 million of “Public Safety”
expenditures, $12.2 million of “Public Works” expenditures, $1.9 million of “Parks and Recreation”
expenditures, $2.7 million of “Public Libraries” expenditures, $2.4 million of “Senior Services” expenditures,
$0.8 million of “Other” expenditures, $3.8 million of “Debt Service Principal” expenditures, $3.3 million of
“Interest and Other Costs” and $0.3 million of *“Capital Expenditures”.

In addition to general operating expenses, the “General Fund”™ also had “Net Other Financing Uses™ of $(69.5)
million. This was composed of $(79.2) million transfer to the “School Department” and other funds with $9.7
million in “Transfers In” from “Other Governmental Funds” for excise tax phase-out.

The “Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses” was $3.5 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This primarily resulted from an increase in tax collection of

approximately $4.2 million. y




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Review of Governmental Major Funds-Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances-Scheol Department (Continued)

June 30, 2006

The “School Department™ had revenues for the year ended June 30, 2006 of $42.0 million. This was derived
from $39.8 miilion of “Intergovernmental” revenues and $2.2 million of “Other” revenues.

Expenditures for the “School Department” totaled $120.5 million. This entire amount represents expenditures
related to “Education™.

In addition to general operating revenues, the “School Department” also received $79.1 million of “Other
Financing Sources” in the form of “Transfers In” from the “General Fund”.

The “Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses” was $0.5 million
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

June 30, 2005

The “School Department™ had revenues for the year ended June 30, 2005 of $40.4 million. This was derived
from $34.9 million of “Intergovernmental” revenues and $5.1 million of “Other” revenues.

Expenditures for the “School Department” totaled $115.5 million. This entire amount represents expenditures
related to “Education”.

In addition to general operating revenues, the “School Department” also received $74.5 million of “Other
Financing Sources” in the form of “Transfers In” from the “General Fund”.

The “Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses” was $(0.6)
million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2006

The Proprietary Funds consist of the Sewer Fund, the Public Facilities Management Foundation, the School
Lunch Program, and the Internal Service Funds. The major source of revenues consists of “Charges for Usage
and Service” of $17.4 million. Total operating revenues were $18.9 million. Total operating expenses for the
year ending June 30, 2006, for the Proprietary Funds were $20.7 million. The “Contract Payments” of $13.2
million for sewer privatization comprise the majority of the expenses. Net “Non-Operating Revenues” for the
year ending June 30, 2006 were $3.0 million. The Proprietary Funds ended fiscal year 2006 with $1.2 million
more in revenues than expenditures. Net Assets “Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt” was $62.8
million at June 30, 2006. Unrestricted Net Assets were $(26.1) million at June 30, 2006, compared to $(26.3)
million at June 30, 2005, an increase of $0.2 million or .8%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund (Continued)

June 30, 2005

The Proprietary Funds consist of the Sewer Fund, the Public Facilities Management Foundation, the School
Lunch Program, and the Internal Service Funds. The major source of revenues consists of “Charges for Usage
and Service™ of $17.1 million. Total operating revenues were $19.7 million. Total operating expenses for the
year ending June 30, 2005, for the Proprietary Funds were $18.5 million. The “Contract Payments” of $12.0
million for sewer privatization comprise the majority of the expenses. Please refer to Note 17 for a further
explanation of privatization contract. Net “Non-Operating Revenues™ for the year ending June 30, 2005 were
$1.9 million. The Proprietary Funds ended fiscal year 2005 with $2.3 million more in revenues than expenses.
Net Assets “Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt” was $61.8 million at June 30, 2005. Unrestricted
Net Assets were $(26.3) million at June 30, 2005, compared to $(29.3) million at June 30, 2004, an increase of
$3 million or 10.2%.

Required Supplemental Information

In addition to this MD& A and the basic financial statements, this report also presents certain Required
Supplemental Information. For the City of Cranston, this Required Supplemental Information inciudes the
Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund and for the School Department. Budgetary comparison
for special revenue funds can be found on “Schedule 4”. The presentation under GASB 34 requires disclosure
of both the original and final budget. The original budget is the first complete appropriated budget. The final
budget is the original budget adjusted by all reserves, transfers, allocations, supplemental appropriations and
other legally authorized legislative and executive changes applicable to the fiscal year.

Analysis of Significant Budget Variations in the General Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2006, the General Fund Revenues were less than budget projections by $(2.1)
million or 0.9%. General Fund Expenditures were less than the budget by $2.4 million or 1.1%. This resulted
in $0.3 million of positive variance from revenues in excess of expenditures in the General Fund for the year
ending June 30, 2006.

Significant revenue variances include:

e Property taxes — Unfavorable variance of $1.9 million due to a decrease in property tax collections.

e Interpovernmental — Favorable variance of $1.3 million due to an increase in excise tax phase-out
payments from the State of Rhode Island.

e  Other ~ Unfavorable variance of $2.1 million mainly due to decreased revenues recorded in conjunction
with the City’s residents’ third party rescue fee billing.

Significant expenditure variances include:

s Law — Unfavorable variance of $0.7 million due mainly to $.65 million charged for required claims
payable reserve.

¢ Rescue Fund — Favorable variance of $2.5 million due to expenditures recorded in conjunction with the
City’s residents’ third party rescue fee runs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Capital Assets

The City of Cranston’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2006 and 2005 amounted to $173.4 and $174.9 million, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, motor vehicles, machinery and equipment and office
furniture and equipment, and infrastructure.

The presentation below for the current fiscal year lists the major categories of capital assets for governmental
activities and business-type activities. Infrastructure assets, assets that are long-lived and can be preserved for a
significantly greater number of years than most capital assets and that normally are stationary in nature such as
streets, sidewalks and curbing are subject to different rules under the standards established by GASB 34. All
infrastnucture assets are included in the City’s capital assets.

Capital Assets at Year End

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Land....oooeiiiiiiiciiciiicennes $ 111 $ 111 $ 04 $ 04 $ 115 $ 115
Buildings....oeovererrernerecnerisneens 59.1 58.8 59.1 58.8
Land improvements................. 9.5 9.5 0.3 0.3 9.8 0.8
Motor vehicles......c.ccoeneenene. 14.4 13.6 14.4 13.6
Equipment.....o.coveevveeriennirionennns 7.8 7.5 1.0 1.0 8.8 8.5
Construction in progress......... 5.8 4.6 5.8 4.6
Infrastructure .....cccoccvvrevenene. 816 81.6 8§1.6 81.6
Leasehold improvements........ 0.1 0.1

Sewer lines....c.cooceeecrecnnrnenns 45.6 45.6 45.6 45.6
Treatment and pumping plant. 74.9 72.8 74.9 72.8
Total assets ............nucereeenn.. 183.5 182.1 128.1 1247 3116 306.8
Less: accumulated depreciation _{80.7) (76.7) (57.5) (55.2) (138.2) (131.9)
Net capital assets................... $102.8 $1054 $ 706 $ 69.5 $173.4 $.174.9

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2006
were $311.6 million less accumulated depreciation of $138.2 million for a net investment in capital assets of

$173.4 million.
The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2005
were $306.8 million less accumulated depreciation of $131.9 million for a net investment in capital assets of
$174.9 million.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on Note III. C. of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Governmental Activities:

Major capital asset additions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 included the following:

e  $1.7 million of vehicles for the police, fire, and public works departments.
e 5.5 million for acquisition of machinery, equipment and furniture.

Major capital asset additions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 included the following:
e  $1.0 million of vehicles for various city departments.

Business-Type Activities:

Major capital asset additions during the ﬁsc;'cll year ended June 30, 2006 included the following:

e  $2.2 million of treatment and pumping plant equipment.
e $1.1 million for construction in progress.

Major capital asset additions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 included the following:

e  $4.0 million of construction in progress related to the Sewer Fund.

Long-Term Debt

June 30, 2006

As of June 30, 2006, the governmental activities had total long-term debt of $189.0 million. Of that, $86.6
million related to bonded debt guaranteed by the City’s assets. The City currently has $4.4 million in leases
payable. The business-type activities had total long-term debt of $11.6 million. Of that, $7.8 million refated to
State Revolving Loans (SRF) from Rhode Island Clean Water Finance Agency and $3.8 million related to
Certificates of Participation that relate to the Public Facilities Management Foundation. The (SRF) funds are
available for projects related to clean water. The $3.8 million of Certificates of Participation relate to
acquisition and improvements of the Public Works Facility. See Note IILF.1. for further explanation of
outstanding debt.

Debt Outstanding

For the year ending June 30, 2006, the City had $102.6 million in debt (bonds, notes, etc.) outstanding
compared to the $80.4 million at June 30, 2005, net increase of $22.2 million 28% (considering debt retirement
and new issues). The key factor in this was the issuance of $23.9million in public improvement bonds less
principal payments made during fiscal year 2006.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Debt Outstanding (Continued)

Outstanding Debt, at June 30

(in Millions)
006 2005
Governmental:
General obligation DONAS.......cvivevriririerierreerese e sasses e easenses $ 86.6 $63.3
Capital 1EASE....c.ei ettt et 4.4 5.3
SUDLOLAL ...t 91.0 68.6
Business-type:
SEWEr IeVOIVING LOANS. ...mreeeeeeerer ettt ren s sae e s snaee s 7.8 7.7
Certificates of PartiCipation .........coveererierirereereererssnrssssene e rassessessesseses 3.8 4.1
SUBLOTAL ...ttt e s nba et 11.6 11.8
TOLAL........ononereeeeerierrerecerrecvsre s s s s e e sesaesas e s e besas et e e st saanansenssenen s $102.6 $80.4

Principal payments of $4.6 million and $1.1 million were made in the governmental and business-type
activities, respectively, during fiscal year 2006.

Based on an actuarial valuation completed as of July 1, 2006, the lability for unpaid pension contributions
decreased by $0.5 million from $89.1 million to $88.6 million.

Except as explained below, under Rhode Island law the City may not, without special statutory authorization,
incur any debt that would increase its aggregate indebtedness not otherwise excepted by law to an amount
greater than 3% of the taxable property of the City. Deducted from the computation of aggregate indebtedness
is the amount of any borrowing in anticipation of taxes authorized by law and the amount of any sinking funds
maintained by the City. There is currently no outstanding debt of the city subject to the 3% debt limit. The
current 3% debt limit of the City is $179 million based on taxable property as of December 31, 2004, of
approximately $8.0 billion. On June 30, 2006, the City had $86.6 million of debt outstanding that is outside the
3% debt limit.

The City’s bond ratings are as follows:

+ Standard & Poor’s : “A-"
» Fitch Ratings: “Baa2-"
* Moody’s Investors Service : “Baa2”

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

e As noted previously, the Fiscal Year 2007 operating budget was passed by a majority vote of the City
Council. Property tax collections were assumed to be coliected at 98.1% of the current levy. There was
also a required reserve budgeted for $102,000. Having the discipline to budget a required reserve will
permit the City to grow a strong Unreserved Fund Balance in future years.

+ The City budgeted approximately $21.7 million for Police and Fire Pension Fund Contributions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, CONTINUED

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest in the City of Cranston’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
or request for additional financial information should be addressed to:

Finance Director
City of Cranston
869 Park Avenue
Cranston R1 02910

3i




Basic
Financial
Statements




EXHIBIT A

{1 of 2)
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISEAND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashccnmnessssnisns TR $ 22,991,086 $ 5,055,274 $ 28,046,360
Investments... 44,005,607 44,005,607
Receivables:
Property taxes... .- 1,399,701 1,399,701
Sewer assessments and user fees net.. £62,704 862,704
lntergovemmemal......................,.,.....,.........,.,.,.,.,.,.,....... 5,852,832 1,555,956 7,408,788
Loans. 2,168,552 2,168,552
ORIttt cemt ettt st st sememat e £ et ann nee o 2,706,707 303,027 3,009,734
Prepalds 899,185 899,185
Bond issue costs - current.. 188,461 59,872 248,333
Internal bakances... 98,994 (98,994) -
L1013 1T SRS 35,037 35,037
TOtal CUFTENT ASSEES....cevirieiserieris s st se s e et essses s sberaseer b bs s ss aes ves 80,311,125 7,772,876 38,084,001
Noncurrent assels:
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricted:
Cash, 504,624 504,624
Total restricted ASSELS........vvirini s e e sen ees - 504,624 504,624
Receivables (net):
a0 N S 1,292,031 1,292,031
Other... o 3,510,000 3,510,000
Othcrasscts 500 500
Bond issue costs - noncurrent.. 2,267,285 163,766 2,431,058
Total receivables and other assets............ 3,559,316 3,674,266 7,233,582
Capital assets {net of zccumulated depreciation):
Land... 11,062,827 342,712 11,405,539
Construcnon in progress... 5,756,558 5,756,558
Land improvements... . 3,905,966 99,811 4,005,777
Buildings and ieasehold 1mprovements 28,292.204 76,826 28,369,030
Sewer service 10 customers. .. ....... ...... 38,679 38,679
Treatment and pumping plant... 44,655,229 44,655,229
Vehicles... . 3,526,427 15,903 3,542,330
Mnchmery, eqmpment nnd fumllure e eae are e e aeeran s 1,228,075 97.439 1,325,514
Infrasiructure 54,834,051 19,511,032 74,345,083
Total net capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation).................... 102,849,550 70,594,189 173,443,739
Total noncurrert assets 106,408,866 74,773,079 181,181,945
TOTAL ASSETS...oce e oeccrmeet et eresteserssvesssararssss sess sssanennnn vs srs vre s es s 186,719,991 82,545,955 269,265,946
(Continued)

The notes to the financial sla!el‘nen_t_,‘s2 are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE [SLAND

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2006

EXHIBIT A
(2 of2)

GOVERNMENTAL

ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

TOTAL

LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable...........cooocnnnnennes
Accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll..............
Accrued interest payable
Retainage payable....
Unearned revenue....
Claims payable. ...t
Bond anticipation NOES. .. ... ... vesvervvesrves vorvrvrnver ees svesnnses esseanns

Total current Habilities. .. .o oo ves o e e e e e s

Moncurrent liabilities:
Uneamned TEVENUES.........ciccir e nse e as 2en eee een een ees

Long-term liabilities due within one year...............oov v vee v nn e
Long-term liabilities due in more than one year..........ccovvee creee e oo

Total long-term Habilties. ..........c.ooiriiriiainrc e
Total noncuerent Habilities... ......ccoooo i v i e e e
TOTAL LIABILEITIES .. .. oo oot et e ce it e eee v e e eee e e aeen
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................coo i
Restricted for;
COMITHIMENIS. .. .. 1o er e eeaes caeeenae eenereaen tae een bre een abe eesoes eense e
DIEbt SEIVICE. .. cov i it i ie vt i et e e e e e e e e
OtheT PUIPOBES. .. ooecee et ettt cee cee cee een cencen eeeeeeeanaee an epeerrrnarrrrrs

URCESIHCIEA. .. .. v vt ees vt e vt e e e e e e e ea aae aan een anaens

TOTAL NET ASSETS.......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin i e e e e

4,274,624
1,007,587
1,131,488
1,259,319

28,441
5,701,528
3,345,795
1,300,000

3,322,404

1,009
55,513

2,557,212

$ 7,597,028

1,007,587
1,132,497
1,314,832

28,441
8,258,800
3,345,795
1,300,000

18,048,782

5,936,198

23,984,980

28,800,000

28,800,000

7,004,115
131,850,058

1,104,059
10,529,898

8,108,174
192,379,956

188,854,173

11,633,957

200,488,130

188,854,173

40,433,957

229,288,130

206,502,955

46,370,153

253,273,110

12,863,084
8,976,552

491,469
(42,514,069)

62,823,896

1,226,000
504,624

{28,378,720)

75,686,980

10,202,552
504,624
491,469

(70,892,789)

$

(20,182,964)

8

36,175,800

$ 15,992,336

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C

(10f2)
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006
OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL SCHOOL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND DEPARTMENT FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash 3 5,782,561 3 1181462 3 14,511,260 $ 21,475,283
Investments 23,563,210 20,442,397 44,005,607
Receivables:
Taxes, net 1,403,422 1,403,422
Intergovernmental 4,894,309 958,523 5,852,832
Loans 2,168,552 2,168,552
Other 252,913 2,253,229 198,922 2,705,064
Prepaid expenses 89,629 21,056 110,685
Advance deposits - hospitalization 788,500 788,500
Due from other funds 1,625,893 892,164 4.946,190 7,464,247
TOTAL ASSETS $ 37,522,308 § 5,204,984 3 43,246,900 3 85,974,192
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable % 2,455,75% 3 863,947 5 623,773 $ 3,943,479
Accrued payroll 1,045,758 84,331 1,130,089
Accrued liabilities 857,587 857,587
Retainage payable 28,441 28,441
Bue to other funds 5,294,226 800,379 1,617,041 7,711,646
Unearned revenue 7,140,395 2,243,102 9,383,497
Claims payable 796,300 2,027,596 2,823,896
Other liabilities 150,000 150,000
Bond anticipation notes 1,300,000 1,300,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,590,025 3,691,922 6,046,088 27,328,635
FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 412,555 412,555
Literacy 2,831 2,831
Commitments 8,976,552 8,976,552
Prepaid items 21,056 21,056
Article 18 55,027 55,027
Unreserved:
Designated for health care 250,000 250,000
Designated for subsequent year expenditures 650,000 650,000
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:
General fund 19,932,283 19,932,283
Special revenue funds 142,649 15,306,533 15,449,182
Capital project funds 12,896,071 12,896,071
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 19,932,283 1,513,062 37,200,212 58,645,557
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 37,522,308 $ 5,204,984 3 43,246,900 ) 85,974,192
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C
2of2)

CITY QECRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE

TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2006

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (EXHIBIT A) ARE
DIFFERENT FROM THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET. THE DETAILS OF THIS DIFFERENCE ARE AS

FOLLOWS:

TOTAL FUND BALANCE (EXHIBIT C, PAGE 1)....ciuniiuiiiieaaeetceeieea e r e seranen s ennsensmns s ennersssansnssanns § 58,645,557
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ARE NOT FINANCIAL RESQURCES
AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:
Beginning capital assets and current additions. .......veiivriessaiimnii i s e 107,924,908
Depreciation EXPeISE. ... vt tiiiiit ittt s et et s ey er ey e an s h e aa e s r e nareas (5,002,508)
Disposal of capital 85868 ... .ceiiiie i e e e (72,850)
OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS ARE NOT AVAILABLE TO PAY FOR CURRENT PERIOD
EXPENDITURES AND, THEREFORE, ARE DEFERRED IN THE FUNDS:
Property tax, interest and lien acerual (NEt)......ocooiniiiiii i e 1,288,310
Property tax receivable - acerual basis change. ... 3,681,970
BT 1851 G088, 1t aivue it rmrre s e erasarsssrassenarrnsarassnsasaarressannansresesssresanmananssacosanceanntmmenennnnnrans 2,455,746
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND IS USED BY MANAGEMENT TO CHARGE THE COST OF
SELF-INSURANCE TO INDIVIDUAL DEPARTMENTS:
The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental activities in the
S ALEITIENE O NMEE ASSLS. .. et iiieeietiietetirsiariaseatas e asaraetaassersatasnnartstasanaasrsasssrranrarnsnsrtasarsnsnsnsssnssssann 1,009,395
SOME LIABILITIES, INCLUDING BONDS PAYABLE, ARE NOT DUE AND PAYABLE IN THE
CURRENT PERIOD AND, THEREFORE, ARE NOT REPORTED IN THE FUNDS:
Beginning long-term Habilities and current year addiions. ... (196,004,224)
Long-term Hability PAYIIENLS. ... oot et eee ittt ettt ettt e eee e s ea s a s s s e an s i e e 7,150,051
PLNTe] 1100 I L (] 0 0 L) L O ON (1,259,319)
NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ... ... it r e e n s e s e $ (20,182,964)

(Concluded)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODFE ISLAND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

EXHIBIT D

OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL SCHOOL GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND DEPARTMENT FUNDS FUNDS
REVENUES:
General property taxes $ 145,906,925 3 3 3 145,906,925
Intergovernmental 9,992,228 39,791,448 19,984,443 69,768,119
Charges for services 12,469,499 1,970,131 20,500 14,460,130
Investment income 1,491,231 620,470 2,111,701
Other 71,749 284,679 1,996,037 2,352 465
TOTAL REVENUES 169,931,632 42,046,258 22 621,450 234599 340
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 7,890,965 1,346,763 9,237,728
Public safety 58,364,793 2,165,231 61,030,024
Public works 12,486,760 12,486,760
Education 120,573,588 7,568,188 128,541,976
Parks and recreation 2,094,667 253,009 2,347,676
Public libraries 2,776,363 45,990 2,822,353
Senior services 2,476,360 100,469 2,576,829
Community development 1,974,504 £,974,504
Other 156,257 156,257
Debt Service:
Principal 3,845,000 3,845,000
Interest and other costs 5,691,992 411,455 6,103,447
Capitat Outlay:
Capital expenditures 3,229,249 3,229,249
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 96,283,157 120,573,588 17,495,058 234,351 803
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 73,648475 (78,527,330) 5,126,352 247,537
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issnance of debt 23,900,000 23,900,000
Bond premium 273,974 273,974
Transfers in 10,692,387 79,061,750 4,946,190 94,700,327
Transfers out (34,007,940} (10,692,387) {94,700,327)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (73,315,553} 79,061,750 18,427,777 24,173,974
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 332,922 534,420 23,554,169 24,421,511
FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2005 19,599 361 978,642 13,646,043 34,224 046
FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2006 $ 19,932,283 $ 1,513,062 8§ 37,200,212 5 58,645,557

‘The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CILY.QECRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20006

EXHIBITE
(1of2)

AMOUNTS REPORTED FOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
(EXHIBIT B} ARE DUE TO:

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (EXHIBIT D). s

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital DULLAY. .. ... ... e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e s e ne e e e e e e e
DEPTECIAtION EXPEMSE. .. ... 1o cvs ver et ves vee can e srn es orn ves ee ver 2o sae 2o mn ses men 2es fn 2o ms £am sem een sen oes nn 2 aee 2en an e e e e

= 1 O

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i. ¢., sales, trade-ins and donations)
is to increase net assets. In the Statement of Activities, only the loss on the sale of capital assets is reported.
However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change
in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold... ... ...,

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds and revenues recognized in the Fund Financial Statements are not recognized in the
Statement of Activities:

Increase in property tax receivable - accrual basis change... ... ... e e
Increase in property tax interest and JIEN TEVENUIC... ... vt v vit v o ves rn s ve vrs en cen ces vee mm s 2o oee mesm ce nes e s ne cee oen

01 O O RN

The issuance of long-term debt {e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principat of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmentai
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets, Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. The details of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred:
Bonds and capital JEase... ... oo o e e e e e e e e e e b h e e e e e e e
BOMd PROIMUUITL.. ..ot i i e e et et it e et s oe s oe oo s e ses eas et e cet can neh b e s rn e tes eas an e ees s e
Principal repayments:
General obligation BOMAS. .. ... .o e e e e o e e e e i e e e e
Certificates of participation..........
CAPILAL JBASE. .. oo it vt ies oot es et o et vea as st ee sas tre e e s te sen ree es se tes ers s s ves ee An See vae rra e <es veever e vrs ses e s i

TOLAL ., 11t crves te s vvrei vve cae rt trrrr et e s aer e ten aes an e eee eenees eee et e mee san sbn eas bee sun es eeeeta bae temee et nn e aan ee re s cen

‘The notes to the financial staterments are an integral part of this statement.

3 24,421,511

[ cE—— N doiok Ao o)

2,531,044
{5,002,508)

(2,471,464)

{72,850)

946,083
159,771

1,105,854

{23,900,000)
(273,974)

3,555,000
290,000

593,589

(19,733,385)

(Continued)




RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

EXHIBITE
(Zof2)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the vse of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Compensated absences and deferred salary... ... cooen i i i e

Net pension obligation.............

Amortization 0f BOnd ISSUAMCE COSIS... ... .o i it i oo ir e ettt et e e et e e e s r s e e mes e e e e e e e s e e
Amortization of Bond Premilm... ... ..o e e e e e e e e s e s e e e
Accrued INTErest PAYADIE. .. ... ooiii vt i s e e et e e e e e e ek ot eee et es e tes e ser e e e e e s e tas e e e e

0+ O P PN

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge costs of medical insurance and property insurance

deductibles to individual dePartMENtS. .. ... ... ... oie it it o ers ee et e e et eie e ae ee s s e e eas e aE e rre e s e mn e e
The net revenue of the activities of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities... ... ..o v

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES (EXHIBIT B) ..oviiiviiirirnatvarverens e sen s eermrs e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

39

3 2,007,280

551,492
(188,461}

136,653

(380,141)

2,126,823

(663,396)

75,179
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EXHIBIT E

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
PUBLIC FACILITIES NONMAIOR
MANAGEMENT SCHOOL LUNCH INTERNAL SERVICE
SEWER FOUNDATION PROGRAM TOTALS FUNDS
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash 5 4,956,447 s 1] 98,827 § 5055274 5 1,515,803
Inventory 35,037 35,037
Receivables (net):
Sewer assessments and user fees 862,704 862,704
Qther 3,027 3,027
Capital lease 300,000 300,000
Intergovernmenial 1,464,672 91,284 1,555,956
Bond issue costs 7,553 52,319 59,872
Due from other funds 90 90 23,158
Fotal Current Assets 7,201,376 352319 228 265 7.871.960 1,538,960
Noncurrent Assels:
Restricted cash 504,624 504,624
Capital lease reccivable 3,510,000 3,510,000
Baond issuance costs 55,338 108,428 163,766
Other assets 500 500
Subtotal Noncuirent Assets 55,338 4,123,552 - 4,178,890 .
Capital Assets:
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation 70,431,100 88,202 74,887 70,594,189
Total Noncurrent Assects 70,486,438 4.211,754 74,837 74,773.079 -
TOTAL ASSETS 11311814 4.564.073 303,852 82.645.039 1,538,960
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,183,470 138,934 3,322,404 6,267
Accrued payroil 1,009 1,009 1,399
Accrued interest 23,719 31,794 55,583
Due to other funds 99,084 99,084
Claims payable - 521,8%9
Uneamed revenue 2,557,272 2,557
Bonds, notes and compensated absences 801,932 300.000 2,127 1.104,059
Total Current Liabifities 6666486 331,794 £41.061 7.139.341 529,565
Noncurrent Liabilitics:
Uncamed revenue 28,800,000 28,800,000
Bonds, notes payable and compensated absences 7,031,252 3,472,506 19,140 0,529,893
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 35.831,252 3,479,506 19,140 39,329,898 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 42497738 3811300 160,201 46,469.239 520,563
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital asscts, net of related debt 62,660,807 88,202 74,887 62,823,896
Restricted for;
Bond reserve funds 504,624 504,624
Unrestricted {27 380.731) 159,947 68.064 (27,152,720} 1,009,395
TOTAL NET ASSETS § 33280076 i 752,773 g 142,951 § 36175800 3 £ 009 395
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODFISLAND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSE AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROFRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

EXHIBIT G

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
PUBLIC FACILITIES NONMAJOR
MANAGEMENT SCHOOL LUNCH INTERNAL SERVICE
SEWER FOUNDATION PROGRAM TOTALS FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for usage and service $ 15821874 $ 32,500 5 1,257,361 $ 17,111,735 3 250,000
Miscellaneous 1,048.710 214,919 159,982 1,423,611 70,681
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 16,870,584 247419 1,417,343 18,535,346 320,681
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operations 1,411,143 50,603 1,479,967 2,941,713 452,578
Personnel 65,131 1,178,709 1,243,840 72,676
Claims 458,823
Contract payments, net 3,204,035 . 13,204,035
Depreciation 2.327,821 8,014 29467 2,365,302
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 17,008,129 58,617 2,688,143 19,754,889 984,077
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (137,546) 188,802 {1,270.800) (1,219,544} {663,396)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest expense (66,796) (201,106) (267,902)
_ Investment income 110,836 18,891 1,513 131,240 75,179
Amortization (7,554) (16,075) (23,629)
Grants 2,030,980 1,101,082 3,132,062
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 2,067,467 (198,290) 1,102 595 2,971,772 75,179
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,929,921 (9,488) {168,205) 1,752,228 (588,217)
NET ASSETS - JULY I, 2005 33,350,155 762,261 311,156 34423 572 1,597,612
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2006 $ 35,280,076 $ 752,773 $ 142,951 $ 36,175,800 3 1,009,395

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF CRANSTON. EHODE ISLAND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3{), 2006

EXHIBITH

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES GOVERNMENTAL
ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES
PUBLIC FACILITIES NON MAJOR
MANAGEMENT SCHOOL LUNCH INTERNAL SERVICE
SEWER FOUNDATION PROGRAM TOTALS FUNDS
CASH FLOWS FRCM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers s 18,315,894 $ 247,419 s 1,417,816 s 19,981,129 3 320,681

Cash paid to supplicrs 13,269,761} 93,303) (1,335,530) (14,698,594)

Cash paid to employees (64,847} (1,178,709) (1,243,556) {72,133}

Cash paid for claims (410,782)

Cash paid for other operating expenses (1.667,226} (78,000) (1,745,226) (515.537)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 3,314,060 154,116 (1,174,423) 2,203,753 (677.770}
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING

ACTIVITIES:

Nonoperating granis received 2,030,980 §,074,240 3,105,220

Change in interfund loans {95,251} (95,251) 122,644

Transfers out {30) {90}

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL

FENANCING ACTIVITIES 1,935,729 - 1,074,150 3.009.879 122,644
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of capital assas (3,354,008 (53,515) {3,407,587)

Collection of capital lease payment 200,000 290,000

Issuance of debt 900,000 900,000

Principal payments {790,733) (290,000) (1,080,733)

Interest paid on long-term debt (65,724) (197,653) {263.377)
NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES {3,310.529) (251,168) - (3.561.697) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Income from investments 110.836 13.891 1,513 131,240 75.179
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 2,050,096 {78,161) (98,760} 1,873,175 (479,947)
CASH - JULY 1, 2005 {INCLUDING RESTRICTED CASH) 2,906,351 582,785 107.587 3.686.723 1,995,750
CASH - JUNE 30, 2006 (INCLUDING RESTRICTED CASH) 3 4,956,447 5 504,624 08,827 § 5,55%.898 $ 1.515.803
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income {loss) s (137,546) s 188,302 s {1,270,800) s (1,219,544) $ (663,394)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used in} operating activities:
Diepreciation 2,327,821 8,014 29467 2,365,302
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 13,130,647 474 13,135,121
Decrease in inventory 3,244 3,244
(Increase) in due from other governmenis 4,186,725 4,386,725
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable {321,809) (42,700) 61,351 (303,158) {62,960}
Increase {decrease) in accrued payroll 284 284 544
Increase in prepaid assessments 637,272 637,272
Deerease in deferred revenue assessments (14,789,334) (14,789,334}
Decrease in unearned revenue (1,920,000) {1,920,000%
Decrease in ¢laitns payable 48,042
Decrease in compensated absences 1,841 1,841
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES S 3.314.060 $ 154,116 {1,174,423) S 2,203,753 s (677,770)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




EXHIBIT 1

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006
PENSION PRIVATE
TRUST PURPOSE AGENCY
FUND TRUST FUND FUNDS
ASSETS: _
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,990,753 3 1,308 $ 1,018,642
Investinents
Guaranteed Investment Contracts 2,178,139
Money Market Mutual Funds 59,624
Equity Mutual Fuads 24,998,230
Bond Mutual Funds 9,379,488
Total Investments 36,615.481 - -
Due from other funds 324,878
TOTAL ASSETS 39,931,111 1,308 1,018,642
LIABILITIES:;
Deposits held in custody for others 1,018,642
Due to other funds 1,643
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 1,643 1,018,642
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION
BENEFITS AND OTHER PURPOSES $ 39,931,111 3 (336) $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this financial statement.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

EXHIBIT J

PENSION PRIVATE
TRUST PURPOSE
FUND TRUST FUND
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Plan member contributions $ 728,325 3
Employer contributions 21,935,067
Other 6,167
Total contributions 22,663,392 6,167
Investment income:
Interest and dividends 115,767
Net increase in the fair value of investments 2,842,557
Total investment income 2,058,324 -
TOTAL ADDITIONS 25,621,716 6,167
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 18,308,881 7,203
Administrative expenses 238,417
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 18,547,297 7,203
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 7,074,418 (1,036)
NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2005 32,856,693 700
NET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2006 $ 39931111 $ (336)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION

The City of Cranston, Rhode Island (the City) was incorporated in 1910 and covers an area of 28 square
miles. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government as prescribed by the City’s home rule
charter, which was adopted in 1962. The Mayor is elected by the voters of the City to a two-year term limited
to four consecutive terms. City Council members are elected to two-year terms, limited to five consecutive
terms. The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter; public safety (police and fire),
public works (streets and highways), public health and social services, sewers and water, a free public library,
and education encompassing grades PreK-12.

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Reporting Entity

The City of Cranston, Rhode Island, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and City
Council. The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component
units, although legaily separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operations.

Blended Component Unit — The Public Facilities Management Foundation (the Foundation), a non-
profit corporation, was created by the City on November 28, 2000. The Foundation consists of five
members who are elected by or work for the City of Cranston. These members include the President of
the Cranston City Council, the City Solicitor, the Director of Public Works, the Director of Finance and
the Director of Administration. The Foundation provides exclusive rights, by a term lease as entered
into with the City on November 1, 2000, to the use of land and buildings located in the City to be used
as a storage and maintenance facility by the Public Works Department. The Foundation is reported as
an enterprise fund.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovermmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.
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EXHIBITK

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
Jocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary find financial
staternents. Agency funds do not have a measurement focus but are accounted for on the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardiess of the timing related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
Jocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, expenditure reimbursement fype grants, certain intergovernmental revenues, transfers,
and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered
to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The School Department Fund accounts for the financial transactions of the City’s School
Department which are not required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Sewer Department Fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer operations.

The Public Facilities Management Foundation, a blended component unit of the City, accounts for
the activities that support and facilitate multiple divisions of the Public Works Department.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for various
scholarships. All resources of the fund, including any earnings on invested resources, may not be
used to support the City’s activities. There is no requirement that any portion of these resources be
preserved as capital.

The Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the Cranston Employees' Retirement System,
which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified employees.

The Agency Funds account for monies held on behalf of students and amounts held for
performance bonds.
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The City also has the opfion of following subsequent private-sector guidance for
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected
not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the City’s sewer, water and transfer station operations and various other functions of the City.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from rnonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the water department enterprise fund, sewer department enterprise fund, transfer department enterprise
fund and of the City’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The sewer
department also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of
connecting new customers to the systern. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service
funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

1. Depaosits and Investments

Depaosits - The City’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, money
market accounts and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Investments - In general, State of Rhode Island Statutes allow the City to invest in obligations of the
United States of America or United States government sponsored corporations, in shares or other
interests in any custodial arrangement, pool, or no-load, open-end management type investment
company or investment trust (as defined), in obligations of any state or political subdivision rated
within the top two rating categories of any nationally recognized rating service, or in obligations of
the State of Rhode Island or political subdivision rated within the top three rating categories of any
nationally recognized rating service. Investment income is recorded in the fund in which it was
eamed.
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The City's pension funds do not have an investment policy; however, the City has agreements with
the investment advisors, who manage the investment portfolios and have full authority for the
investment and reinvestment of pension fund assets.

Investments for the City are reported at fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables

a.

b.

Interfunds

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current porticn of
interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances.”

Property Taxes and Other Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, all trade, property tax, and water and sewer use are
shown net of an allowance for uncoilectibles. Allowance percentages range from 10 to 50% of
outstanding receivable balances at June 30, 2006, and are calculated upon prior collection
history.

In the fund financial statements, all property taxes receivable at June 30, which have not been
collected within sixty days of June 30, have been recorded as deferred revenue, since they are
not considered to be availabie to finance expenditures of the current year. Taxes coliected
during the sixty day period have been recorded as revenue.

Property taxes are assessed on property as of December 31. Taxes are billed on or about June 1
(for the subsequent fiscal year) based on the assessed value for all real property, tangible
property, and motor vehicles located in the City. Taxes are due in four installments in July,
October, January and April. Rhode Island general laws restrict the City’s ability to increase
either its total tax levy or its tax rates by more then 5.5% over those of the preceding year.
Recently the State of Rhode Island passed a law, which will be in effect for fiscal year 2008,
that would decrease this cap by .25% each year until it has been lowered to a maximum of 4%
by fiscal year 2013. Overdue taxes are assessed penalties and will be collected through the sale
of tax titles if required.

3. Restricted Assets

The restricted assets for the City are restricted for debt reserve requirements, building improvements
and minor maintenance costs associated with the Public Facilities Management Foundation.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

I  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Assets. Liabilities. and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

4. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, cquipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities colwmnns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,500 in the City and $5,000 in
the School Department for equipment, $20,000 for improvements and $100,000 for infrastructure,
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such asseis are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Property, piant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:
Assets Years
Buildings 20-50
Leaseheld improvements 20
Infrastructure 5-65
Sewer plant 50
Sewer lines and pumping stations 30-100
Vehicles 5
Machinery and Equipment 3-20
5. Compensated Absences
Under the terms of various contracts and policies, City employees are granted vacation and sick
leave based on length of service. The City’s policy is to recognize the cost of vacation and sick
leave in governmental funds when paid and on the accrual basis in proprietary funds. The amount
of earned but unpaid vacation and sick leave relating to governmental fund employees is recorded as
long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements.
6. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issnance costs, are deferred and amortized over the
life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.
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EXHIBITK

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

L

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Assets, Liabilities. and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

6.

8.

9

Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Fund Equity and Net Assets

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change.

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified into the following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

This category presents the net assets that reflect capital assets net of only the debt applicable to
the acquisition or construction of these assets. Debt issued for non-capital purpose is excluded.

Restricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets restricted by external parties (creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws and regulations).

Unrestricted Net Assets

This category presents the net assets of the City which are not restricted,
Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities including disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities and reported revenues, expenses and expenditures during the fiscal year.

Reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for the internal service fund and
the individual enterprise funds in the fund financial statements in order to provide an understanding
of the changes in the financial position and operations of these funds. Also, certain amounts
presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current
year’s presentation.
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

It is the responsibility of the Mayor, with the cooperation of the Director of Finance, to submit a
proposed budget for the following fiscal year to the City Council not later than the first day of April of
each year. The City Council acts on the budget not later than the 15™ day of May. Public hearings are
conducted on the recommended budget and the final recommended budget is legally enacted through an
ordinance at the Financial City Council Meeting. Budget appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal
year, with the exception of capital project funds.

The level of budgetary control for the General Fund (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot
legally exceed appropriations) is fixed by resolution of the annual Financial City Council Meeting. The
resolution authorizes the City Council to spend within the total sum appropriated for municipal
purposes. While this restriction prohibits spending in excess of the authorized budget, the policy enables
the City Council to use surplus funds within the overall appropriations budget to offset over
expenditures that may arise within a specific budgeted account.

The budget for the Schools Unrestricted Fund is prepared annually and approved by the School
Committee. The amount of the annual transfer from the General Fund is ultimately determined through
the adoption of the General Fund budget. This appropriation does not lapse at year end. The City also
adopts budgets for two of the nonmajor special revenue funds.

Encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in
which the purchase order, contract or other commitment is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances
outstanding at year end are reported in the City’s budgetary reports as expenditures in the current year.
The budgetary reports are located in the Required Supplementary Information (RSI) immediately
following these notes. Generally, aside from the Capital Projects Fund, all unencumbered
appropriations lapse at year end. Appropriations for capital projects are reissued in the amount available
at the end of the fiscal year.

Budget - GAAP Reconciliation

A reconciliation of revenues, expenditures, and fund balance between the accounting treatment required
by GAAP (Exhibit D), and budgetary requirements (RSI), is as follows:

School Department Fund
FUND
REVENUES EXPENDITURES BALANCE

BALANCE, BUDGETARY BASIS

JUNE 30, 2006 $ 38,004,266 $116,651,249 $1,100,507
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2005

liquidated during the year ended June 30, 2006 .............cc..v.. 292,902
Encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2006

Charged to budgetary expenditures...........coeveeriverenesnererenens (412,555) 412,555
State Teachers’ Retirement on-behalf payment ..o 4,041,992 4,041,992
BALANCE, GAAP BASIS - JUNE 30, 2006 .........cccovvvrreninnn 3 42,046,258 $120,573,588 3 1,513,062
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

C. Capital Projects Authorizations

The following is a summmary of projects recorded in the Capital Projects Fund at June 30, 2006:

CURRENT
PROJECT YEAR CUMULATIVE BALANCE
PROJECT NAME AUTHORIZATION EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES JUNE 30. 2006
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
School bond fund ........ccoeecerverens § 27,735,000 $ 1,383,332 $ 8,889,151 $ 18,845,849
Police and Fire bond fund........... 18,945,000 1,154,599 4,443,693 14,501,307
Public building bond fund........... 2,000,000 607 445,236 1,554,764
Recreation bond fund ................. 4,400,000 196,222 2,108,731 2,291,269
Highway bond fund..................... 5,700,000 17,777 2,013,144 3,686,856
Storm drains bond fund............... 900,000 44,350 240,389 659,611
Neighborhood infrastructure fund 4,000,000 436,362 1,465,763 2,534,237
Open space bond fund................. 1,000,000 336,760 663,240
ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Sewer System Project................. 1,226,000 1,226,000

D. Deficit Fund Balance

During the year ended June 30, 2006, the City had a deficit fund balance in the following fund:

Nonmajor governmental Funds

Community Development Block Grant..................... $ 61,625

The deficit will be ecliminated through future intergovernmental grant receipts or inter-fund
contributions.

I, DETAILED NOTES
A. Cash and Investments

1. Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure,
the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk
requires that deposits be placed in financial institution's that are FDIC insured up to $100,000 and
rated “well capitalized” on the institutions most recent audited financial statements/SEC filings, if
deposits exceed $100,000. As of June 30, 2006, $21,084,923 of the City’s bank balance including
certificates of deposit of $21,285,100 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized ...........cocoeeveeieervvincrvsnnnee $18,791,445
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank’s

trust department, not in the City’s name.........covevvveerennns 2,293 478
Total amount subject to custodial credit risK.....occeveveviveneee. $21,084,923

52




EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

HI. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

A. Cash and Investments (Continued)

2. The investments classified under Risk Category 3 are covered by the Securities Investor Protection
Corporation (SIPC) up to $500,000, including $100,000 of cash from sale or for purchase of
investments, but not cash held solely for the purpose of carning interest. SIPC protects securities
such as notes, stocks, bonds, debentures, certificates of deposit and money funds.

At June 30, 2006, the City's investments (including restricted investments) consisted of the
following:
INVESTMENT MATURITIES (IN YEARS)
TYPE OF FAIR LESS 1-5
INVESTMENT VALUE N/A THAN 1 YEARS
Mutual Funds:
Equity Mutual Funds......c.ccoceveieveeceees $ 24,998,230 $ 24,998,230 $ 3
Money Market Mutual Funds......cn......... 6,347,235 6,347,235
Certificates of Deposit......ccceerinieeeererinains 37,717,995 37,717,995
Guaranteed Investment Contracts.............. 2,178,139 2,178,139
U.S. Government Obligations.........cc.evenne 9,379.488 9.379.488
TOTAL .ot evnscsrrarsena s casassssnares $ 80621087 $§ 24998230 3 46,243,369 § 9379488

Interest rate risk - The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.

Credit risk - The City has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to credit
risk other than State Statues governing investments in obligations of any State or political
subdivision or in obligations of the State of Rhode Island or political subdivision.

The City’s investments in money market mutual funds, U.S. Government obligation funds and
guaranteed investment contracts had average ratings as follows by Standard & Poor’s:

MONEY

MARKET  GUARANTEED

MUTUAL INVESTMENT
AVERAGE RATING FUND CONTRACTS
AAA L $ $
Unrated......ooveovcnvcrereeneens 6.347.235 2.178.139
TOTAL ... $ 6347235 $ 2,178,139

Custodial credit risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities

that are in the possession of an outside party.
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

A. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Guaranteed Investment Contracts investments are held by the counterparty’s trust department or

agent but not in the City’s name and, therefore, are subject to custodial credit risk.

AMOQUNT
1LESS SUBIECT TO
INSURED CUSTODIAL
TOTAL AMOUNTS CREDIT RISK
Guaranteed Investment Contracts ........... $ _2178,139 3 500,000 $ 1.678.139

B. Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the City’s government-wide financial statements by type, including

the applicable allowances for uncollectibles, are as follows:

PROPERTY TAXES
INTEREST

TAXES & PENAILTIES TOTAL
Current POTHOI vvverveveee e vennererensrsrrnresns $ 729,779 $§ 669921 $ 1399701
Long-term Portion ......cccevvurevniesennrnncrens $ 3,408,643 $ 1,160,510 $ 4,569,152
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles ....... { 2.735.000) { 542121 (_3.277.121)
Net Long-term Portion ........ccocecvcuceen.e § 673643 $ 618389 3 1,292,031
Total Receivable......ccoooeeveeceeeene $ 1403422 § 1288310 $ 2,601,732

ECONOMIC SEWER
DEVELOPMENT CDBG USE

LOANS LOANS CHARGES
Gross Receivable......coovvevrernerererirenss $ 1,035403 $ 1,133,149 $ 1,295,704
Less Allowance for Uncollectibles.... { 433.000)
Net Receivable .....oooeeeveeeeereecreeeneee. $ 1.035403 $1.133,149 ) 862,704

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue

reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

DEFERRED REVENUE:
Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund) ...,

UNEARNED REVENUE:
AGVANCE 1aX COLLECHONS ...vveerrereserirscra e e e serss s s ses st e oot seesestas s s onsbons
TUneamned developer security deposits ... oo
Grant draw-downs prior to meeting all eligibility requirements .........c.ovrveirieeisernvnees
Unearned charges fOr SEIVICES .....uoviiinnineiirinrssrersriessrerssss e essvnssesasssssssesassessoase

TOTAL UNEARNED REVENUE FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS. ..........cciiirierriens
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3,374,340
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT K

I, DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

C.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2006 was as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1,2005 INCREASES DECREASES  JUNE 30, 2006
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
Land.. . $ 11.062.827 $ 3 3 11.062.827
Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Land iMprovements. ... v orseesreresessrssssssseessensees 9,458,613 9,458,613
Buildings 58,832,923 288,659 59,121,582
Machinery and equipment 2,361,612 356,240 64,773 2,653,079
Office fumniture and equipment ........ocoececerereerecernerenes 5,140,276 140,568 129,089 5,151,755
Vehicles 13,589,932 1,745,577 916,848 14,413,661
Infrastructure 81,676,306 81,676,306
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated .......o.covervnne 171.059.662 2.531.044 1.110,710 172,479,996
Total Capital ASSELS.......cceeveeereereermreettersinsenssiersssises 182,122,489 2,531,044 1,110,710 183,560,823
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land improvements ... voeeensesesesesesesesesesesesssesesesesens 5,081,569 471,078 5,552,647
Buildings..... 29,797,695 1,031,683 30,829,378
Machinery and equipment......evinsvensssrrasnrens 1,448,036 262,593 64,773 1,645,856
Office fumiture and equipment.. 4,822 431 215,021 106,549 4,930,903
L 10,044,415 1,714,356 866,538 10,892,234
INFrAStIUCHUTE .o n e e ere e rer s snere e renes 25534 479 1.307.776 26.842.255
Total Accumulated Depreciation .........ocoveececnenenee. 76,728,625 5.002.508 1,037,860 80,693,273
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated, net........c.u.. 94.331.037 { 2.47].464) 72,850 91.786.723
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net...en. §105,393.864 $(2471464) % 72,850 $102,849,550
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
05 1 o S $ 342,712 $ 3 3 342,712
Construction in Progress. .. ..o rrererererereeereoneeeseces 4652031 1,104,527 5.756.558
Total Capital Assets, not being Depreciated......c.coeeuen. 4,994 743 1,104,527 - 6.099.270
Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Land improvements .....wereeereerreerreesecenesesseesrsessanes 266,795 266,795
Leasehold Improvements. ... e 42,700 40,775 83,475
Collection systems 45,646,375 45,646,375
Treatment and pumping plant 72,719,699 2,249,545 74,969,244
Machinery and equipment 1.039.680 12.740 1.052.420
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated............cccc..... 119.715.249 2,303,060 - 122,018,309
Total Capital Assets 124 709,992 3.407.587 - 128,117,579
Less Accumulated Depreciation for;
Eand improvements 153,644 13,340 166,984
Eeasehold improvements 6,649 6,649
Collection systems... 25,479,194 656,149 26,135,343
Treatment and pumping plant 28,660,498 1,654,001 30,314,499
Machinery and equipment........conmvvnmscnmssssinssssanens 864,752 35,163 899.915
Total Accumulated Depreciation ..., 55,158,088 2,365,302 - 57,523,390
Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated, net ..........c.... 64,557,161 ( 62.242) - 64.494.919
Business-Type Capital Assets, net ....ooecseesiiiennnnns $ 69,551,904 $ 1042285 b - § 70594189
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IIl. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

C. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the City as follows:

Govemnmental Activities:
General government .............

Public safety -...ccooererrinncancnene :

Public works

Education.......cceceeeeeeveeeenenee.

Parks and recreation ............cceuevenee.

Public libraries.................

SN0 SETVICES carererrrrerrerereesevsenarresenes

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities ..

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows:

Business-Type Activities:
Sewer .veeerenne

Public facilities management foundation

School Iunch.. e

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities

$ 91619
776,774
2,156,843
925262
884,243
87,572

80,195

$.5.002.508

$ 2,327,821
8,014
29467

1 2365302

Construction Commitments

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2006. At year end, the City’s commitments
with contractors are as follows:

Project Commitment
SChOOL CONSLTUCTHION ...vetesreireciiecteetrsvesrectetesessesssesseresssssaessestastanses $ 7,420,742
Playgrounds .......cociveiicicoisienniistiesise e snensessnssnssnsnsssessasisssssens 1.555.810
o] ) USRI 3 8976552
Business-Type Activities:
SEWEL PTOJECLS wvuerrrrererrrareeirerressaseesessssssesssssestssessassesesesaesessssssssssenes $ 1,226,000
b. Interfund Accounts
1. Interfund Payables and Receivables
A summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 20006 is as follows:
CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUETO
MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND:
School unrestricted fund N/A $ 800,289 5
Budget Stabilization N/A 481,427 3,079,943
Hospital Stabilization N/A 1,866,247
Community Development Fund........cocceeee. N/A 36,479
Public Service Funds N/A 102,758
WIA Job Development Fund ......covvceeveernenene N/A 34,420
School Bond Fund... N/A 38,288
Police and Fire Bond Fund.........c.ooeeeeemneneenee N/A 15,419
Public Building Bond Fund ......ccccoconnncnnnn N/A 3,446
Recreation Bond Fund N/A 4,643
Highway Bond Fund .......cevveererecsmrmsesessnens N/A 7,267
Storm Drains Bond Fund ... N/A 730
Insurance Risk Management .o eorreeeesennns N/A 23,158
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III. DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D. Interfund Accounts (Continued)

1. Interfund Payables and Receivables (Continued)

CORRESPONDING
FUND DUE FROM DUETQ

GENERAL FUND: (Continued)

Private Purpose Trust Funds ........coverervvvmsnens N/A by 1,643 $

Pension Trust Fund...... N/A 324,878

Sewer fund.............. N/A 99,0094
TOTAL GENERAL FUND: 1,625,893 5,294,226
SCHOOL SPECIAL REVENUE

UNRESTRICTED:

General Fund ......... N/A 800,286

School Lunich Fund N/A 90

Restricted School Funds........cooevvevecrcecrenrene. N/A 862 164
TOTAL SCHOOL SPECIAL REVENUE

UNRESTRICTED....... 892.164 200,379
SEWER:

General Fund ....... N/A 99.094
SCHOOL LUNCH:

School Unrestricted Fund N/A 90 z
NONMAJOR FUNDS:

Restricted School Funds School Unrestricted Fund 892,164

Budget Stabilization Fund........c.ccoereniieecnns General Fund 3,079,943 481,427

Hospital Stabilization Fund.......ceceeeverevenene. General Fund 1,866,247

Community Development Block Grant Fund General Fund 36,479

Public Service Funds General Fund 102,758

WIA Job Development Fund .....ooceeeecrveeenes General Fund 34,420

School Bond Fund.. General Fund 38,288

Police and Fire Bond Fund General Fund 15,419

Public Building Bond Fund ........coococovovnenene. General Fund 3,446

Recreation Bond Fund General Fund 4,643

Highway Bond Fund General Fund 7,267

Storm Drains Bond Fund .o General Fund 730
TOTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS........ccoovveeannes 4.946.190 1,617,041
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND:

Insurance Risk Management Fund................. General Fund 23,158
FIDUCIARY FUNDS:

City Employee Pension Fund...........c.ocveenee General Fund 324,878

Private Purpose Trust Education

Scholarships............ General Fund 1,643
TOTAL FIDUCIARY FUNDS.....coeecrn 324 878 1,643
GRAND TOTAL.....coeeeeemeiene $ 7.812.373 3 7.812.373
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I DETAILED NOTES (CONTINUED)

D. Interfund Accounts (Continued)

All interfund balances result from time lag between the dates payments occur between funds for short
term internal financing.

2. Interfund Transfers

A summary of interfund transfers as of June 30, 2006 is as follows:

CORRESPONDING TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
FUND IN OuUT

GENERAL FUND:

Excise Tax Phase Out Fund......... N/A $ 10,692,387 $

School Unrestricted Fund............ N/A 79,061,750

Budget Stabilization Fund........... N/A 3,079,943

Hospital Stabilization Fund......... N/A 1.866.247
TOTAL GENERAL FUND......c.oovevnnee 10,692 387 84.007.940
SCHOOL UNRESTRICTED:

General Fund.........ccienesevnnnnns N/A 79.061.750
NONMAJOR FUNDS:

Budget Stabilization Fund........... General Fund 3,079,943

Hospital Stabilization Fund......... General Fund 1,866,247

Excise Tax Phase Qut Fund......... General Fund 10,692 387
TOTAL NONMAJOR FUNDS........... 4.946.190 10.692387
GRAND TOTAL ...ooorererervrrrsrensrserrsens § 94700327 $ 94700327

E. Short-Term Obligations - Bond Anticipation Notes

The City uses bond anticipation notes during the construction period of variocus public projects prior to
the issuance of the bonds at the completion of the project.

Short-term obligation activity for the year ended June 30, 2006 was as follows:

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, JUNE 30,
TYPE OF OBLIGATION 2005 ADDITIONS REDUCTIONS 2006
Bond Anticipation Note..........ccccomemrmnienecneerrnnnens b $ 1,300,000 h $._..1,300.000

The bond anticipation note carries an interest rate of 5.25% and matures August 1, 2006,
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F. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

1. Summary of Changes

The following is a summary of changes in long-term cbligations during the fiscal year:

Governmental Activities:

BALANCE BALANCE
ORIGINAL  DATEOF DATEQOF  INTEREST JULY 1, JUNE 30, CURRENT
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 1 E MATURITY RAT 2 DDITI D P T
GENERAL OBLIGATION:
Public improvement  § 17,540,000  06/15/98 07/15/18 44-60% 3 2,900,000 $ $ 715000 & 2,185000 $ 585,000
Public improvement 16,115,000  11/15/9%9 11/15/19  4.5-5.45% 2,900,000 475,000 2,425,000 325,000
Refunding ............. 13,320,000  12/01/00 07/01/15 4.5-5.5% 9,565,000 950,000 8,615,000 955,000
Public improvement 27,050,000  02/15/04 02/15/24 2.0-5.0% 25,695,000 1,355,000 24,340,000 1,355,000
Advance refunding 22,280,000  05/13/0% 07/15/19 3.0-5.0% 22,280,000 60,000 22,220,000 5,000
Public improvements 23.900000  6/14/06 4/1/2026 4.0-5.0% 23,900,000 23,900,000 995.000
Total General Obligation Bonds........cco oo 63,340,000 23,900,000 3,555,000 83,685,000 4,220,000
BORA PIOIMIINS. ... eecveoeeecreeceressemeeseres s ssenessensasamsesansssansssesessnsssessesnsaseansassassnes 2,733,055 273974 136.653 2.870.376 -
TOTAL BONDS AND RELATED LIABILITIES .......cocvovevivrvermserasssnrasasrssens 66,073,055 24173974 3,691,653 86,555,376 4,220,000
LEASES PAYABLE:
Public Facilities Management
Foundation Lease 5,130,000  11/0100 1101115 4.75-5.25% 4,100,000 290,000 3,810,000 300,000
Meodular buildings. 201,632 09720100 08/20/05 5.59% 7,808 7,808 -
Modular buildings. 138,599  07/30/01 06/30/06 5.25% 33,189 30,568 2,621 2,621
Musical instruments 110,634  08/29/01 08/29/05 8.3% 23,810 23,810 -
School buses ......... 793,314  07/15/01 12/01/05 5.1% 170,083 170,083 -
Modular buildings. 189,573  (9/01/02 09/01/07 4.85% 89,029 39,932 49,097 41,912
Telephone equipment 95,484  08/01/02 08/01/07 0.0% 39,785 19,097 20,688 19,097
School buses ......... 420,000 12/15/02 12/15/07 3.84% 189,510 92,844 96,666 96,666
Vehicle - trucks...., 1,478,889  10/31/01 10/31/07 5.4% 669,211 211.447 457.764 222,865
Total Leases PAYabIC.......cc.ccccieeecueeereceecrerseensssovesnssssrsssssesssensesetsnsssnssrssensessen 5,322,425 - 885,589 4,436,836 683.16]
TOTAL BONDS AND NOTES AND RELATED LIABILITIES ...........c.coo.... 71,395.480 24,173,974 4577242 90992212 4903161
COMPENSATED ABSENCES. e raas 8,577,328 2,306,735 2,007280 8,876,783 2,034,008
DEFERRED SALARY coovuvocrccriinsissires s ssssssssssssssss s sssssssassssesssssasssssassassssns 383,501 14,037 369464 36,946
NET PENSION OBLIGATION.........cccc... ererineee et AR st b e st s et 89,107,206 551,492 88,555,714
CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS...........ccoon.. 60,000 60,000 30,000
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ...... ..o cereceererenaee $169523515 § 264807090 § 7150051 $188854,173 $7.004115

All long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the General Fund.

The Statement of Net Assets includes $3,274,207 of leased capital assets.
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F. Changes in Long-Term Obligations (Continued)
1. Summary of Changes (Continued)

Business-Type Activities:

BALANCE BALANCE
ORIGINAL DATEOF DATEOF INTEREST JULY |, JUNE 30, CURRENT

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT ISSUE _MATURITY  RATE 2005 ADDITIONS BDEDUCTIONS 2006 PORTION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEWER:

RI Ciean Water...... $ 3,242,000 09/01/93 09/01/15 3.0% $ L,783,100 3§ 3 162,100 § 1,621,000 $ 162,100

RI Clean Water...... 700,000 08/25/99 09/01157 3.0% 540,817 42,633 498,184 431,832

RI Clean Water...... 2,000,000 11/13/03 09/01/27 0.0% 2,000,000 100,000 1,900,000 100,000

RI Clean Water...... 3,400,000  12/30/04 09/01/11 0.0% 3,400,000 486,000 2,914,000 486,000

RI Clean Water...... 840,000  09/01/05 09/01257 3.0% 900.000 900,000 10,000
TOTALSEWER ... oot srvntvssserss s sassassessassssms s sesssessssssassassas aneas 7,723917 900,000 790,733 7,833,184 801,932
PUBLIC FACILITIES MANAGEMENT

FOUNDATION:
Certificates of

participation.......... 5,130,000 11/0L/00 11A1/15  4.75-5.25% 4,100,000 290,000 3,810,000 300,000
Certification of participation unamortized discount...........c..coeeeeeaiiinnninl, (36,244} 5,750 (30.494) -
TOTAL BONDS AND RELATED LIABILITIES. ...............coiiiiiiinninin 11,787,673 900,000 1,086,483 11,612,690 1,101,932
COMPENSATED ABSENCES ..o reeeereermrecentrnssessssmsssssssssssassssesssssssssan osnes 17,925 1,842 19,767 1,977
DEFERRED SALARY ...voviiriirnscsisinsinssvet s sesessessesssnsssssesssssssssessmssserseseseaniens 1,500 1,500 150
TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS....coccvivreer et sttt eeteetentessesesssssestssesssesssereaneans 3 11807098 % 901842 § 1086483 § 11633957 $1.104059

The following is a summary of annual debt service requirements to maturity for the retirement of
general obligation debt, leases and certificates of participation:

BUSINESS-TYPE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES
YEAR GENERAL LEASES CERTIFICATES OF
ENDING OBLIGATION DEBT PAYABLE PARTICIPATION CLEAN WATER BONDS
JUNE30, PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST

2007 3 4220000 $ 3,543,890 $ 683161 § 213621 $ 300000 % 183,453 3 801932 § 106,695

2008 4,665,000 3,601.907 558,675 181,191 315,000 168,462 803,166 100,986
2009 4,780,000 3.416,785 335,000 152,618 335,000 152,618 804,433 91,737
2010 4,885,000 3,223,537 350,000 136,053 350,000 136,053 805,736 82,449
2011 5,005,000 3,017,573 365,000 118,710 365000 118,710 807,076 73,119
2012-2016 26,160,000 11,569,219 2,145 000 288,945 2,145,000 288,945 2,310,841 195,986
2017-2021 21,940,000 5,560,173 800,000 63,080
20222025 _ 12,030,000 1,521,525 700,000 19.796

TOTALS 35 _83.685000 § 35454609 $ 4436836 % 1091138 § 3R10000._% 1048241 3 7833184 % 733848
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F. Changes in L.ong-Term Obligations (Continued)

2.

3.

4

Statutory Debt Limitations

Debt Limit

Except as explained below, under Rhode Island law the City may not, without special statutory
authorization, incur any debt which would increase its aggregate indebtedness not otherwise
excepted by law to an amount greater than 3% of the taxable property of the City. Deducted from
the computation of aggregate indebtedness is the amount of any borrowing in anticipation of taxes
authorized by law and the amount of any sinking funds maintained by the City. There is currently
no outstanding debt of the City subject to the 3% debt limit. The current 3% debt limit of the City is
$168 million based on taxable property as of December 31, 2005, of approximately $8.0 billion.

The State of Rhode Island General Assembly ("General Assembly") may by special act permit the
City to incur indebtedness outside the 3% debt limit. Bonds issued either within the 3% debt limit
or by special legislation adopted by the General Assembly authorizing the City to incur debt are
subject to referendum by the electors of the City. On June 30, 2006, the City had $86,685,000 of
debt outstanding, none of which is subject to the 3% debt limit.

In addition to debt authorized within the 3% debt limit and debt authorized by special act of the
General Assembly, Rhode Island General Laws Section 45-12-11 authorizes the State Director of
Administration, upon petition by a municipality, to authorize such municipality to incur
indebtedness in excess of the 3% debt limit whenever the Director shall determine that the sums
appropriated by the municipality or its funds available are insufficient to pay the necessary expenses
of the municipality. The City has not requested the State Director of Administration to authorize
indebtedness of the City under Section 45-12-11.

Prior Year Debt Refundings

In the prior year the City issued $22,280,000 of general obligation bonds for the advance refunding
of $21,755,000 of two public improvement bonds. The proceeds of the new bonds were placed in
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly,
the trust account's assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s
financial statements. At June 30, 2006, $21,640,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

Authorized/Unissued Bonds

The amount of authorized, unissued bonds are as follows:

General purposes $ 16,390,022
Schools 8,416,228
TOTAL § 24 806,250
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to public official liability, police liability, Board of
Education legal liability, theft or impairment of assets, errors and omissions, injury to employees and
natural disasters. The City is self-insured in most areas of risk, subject to certain third party “stop loss™
coinsurance. Self-insured risks include general liability, property and casualty, workers’ compensation,
unemployment and employee health and life insurance claims. Settled claims have not exceeded
commercial coverage in any of the past three years, and there has not been any significant reductions in
insurance coverage from amounts held in prior years.

The City’s health insurance program provides coverage to the City’s employees and retirees through
Healthmate and Blue Cross - Blue Shield of Rhode Island (BC/BS) and United Health. The City’s
program is a self-insured program with BC/BS and United Health acting as a third-party agents for the
City in the payment of the various claim plans used by the City.

The City of Cranston confributes to a separate account an amount per covered employee which would
otherwise have been paid to an insurance carrier. These amounts are determined by the City of Cranston
based upon recommendations made by the plan administrator. Factors considered by the plan
administrator include the amount of claims paid during the previous year, claims administration costs
and projected insurance industry inflation rates. The City of Cranston, including Cranston Public
Schools, incurred approximately $25 million for fiscal year 2005 under this plan.

In order to avoid catastrophic losses, the City “reinsures™ the program by purchasing insurance known as
“stop-loss insurance™ from BCS Insurance Co. and United Healthcare Services. Two types of “stop-loss
insurance™ are purchased: 1)} individual stop-loss; and 2) aggregate stop-loss, with both provided
through the Plan Administrator. Under the individual stop-loss insurance, the City pays the first
$200,000 of claims for individual employees or dependents. Any charges accrued by an individual in
excess of $200,000 in a fiscal year are thereafter reimbursed by BCS Insurance Co. and United
Healthcare Services. The aggregate stop-loss is designed to protect the City for multiple large claims
which may not reach the individual stop-loss attachment point ($200,000). The aggregate stop-loss limit
is $2,000,000 per claim,

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets,
errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The City established the Cranston
Insurance and Risk Management Commission (an internal service fund) to account for and finance its
uninsured risks of loss.

The City records liabilities for self-insured claims reported if it is probable that a loss has been incurred
and the amount can be reasonably estimated. The City has established a liability based on historical
trends of previous years, where available, and attorney’s estimates of pending matters and lawsuits in
which the City is involved.

The self-insurance program and payments to the fund are based upon estimates by number of employees
and type of coverage (single or family) and trends in the insurance claims and estimates for
administration. The claims liability reported in the fund is based upon the provisions of GASB
Statements No. 10 and 30, which require that a liability for estimated claims incurred but not reported be
recorded. The amount of claim accrual is based on the ultimate costs of settling the claim, which
include past experience data, inflation, and other future economic and societal factors and incremental
claim adjustment expenses, net of estimated subrogation recoveries. The claim accrual does not include

other allocated or unallocated claims adjustment expenses.
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IV. QTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A. Risk Management {Continued)

Changes in the self-insurance liability for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 are as

follows:
2006 2005
TULY 1 senra e e e $ 3,056,894 § 2,733,325
Add: incurred Claims ... ceeeccere e irree s 30,007,423 29,166,782
Less: payments of claims attributable to events
of both the current and prior fiscal years:

Health and life .....ccooeverrenecrvcrerecrnrcrrenreninens 26,052,374 25,388,435

Other Claims....c.coeereervereeinecesescseetreeeerensnnes 3,666,148 3454778
TUNE 30t e $ 3.345.795 $.3.056.894

The liabilities above have not been discounted to their present value. Incurred claims represent the total
of a provision for events of the current fiscal year and any change in the provision for events of the prior
fiscal years.

B. Lease of Wastewater Treatment Facility

The City has entered into a Wastewater Treatment Facility Lease and Service Agreement with Triton,
LLC/U.S. Filter (the "Company™). The terms of the agreement include among others that the City will
lease to the Comnpany its Wastewater Treatment System for 25 years. The City will remain owner of the
system and will continue to establish and collect all sewer fees. The Company will be responsible for
providing wastewater treatment services to the City for that time period; operating and maintaining the
City's wastewater treatment facility, pumping stations, force mains, sewer interceptors and the rest of the
collection system; designing, constructing and testing certain system improvements; and administering
the City's municipal industrial pre-treatment program ("MIPP").

The contract required the Company to pay the City a one-time payment as consideration for the lease.
The payment of $48.0 million represents a prepayment of the lease payments due to the City over the
next 25 years. These lease payments are "earned" over the life of the lease. Accordingly, deferred
revernie has been recorded in the Sewer Enterprise Fund which wiil be realized on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease (25 years).

At June 30, 2006, the balance of unearned revenue related to this was $30,720,000, which is comprised
of a short-term portion of §1,920,000 and a long-term portion of $28,800,000.

During the term of the agreement, the City pays the Company a service fee, which is calculated based on
definitive components and amounts, as adjusted in accordance with guidelines established in the
agreement. The service fee is generally fixed at the beginning of each fiscal year. During 2006, the City
paid service fees totaling $13.2 million. The City also recognized 4% of the lease payment ($1,920,000)
as revenue for the year ended June 30, 2006.

63




EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

C.

Commitments and Litigation

Construction and other significant commitments have been reported as reserve for commitments in the
fund equity section of the balance sheet.

Amounts received or receivable from Federal and State grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits and the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable. In the opinion of the City attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

Employee Retirement Systems
Summary

The City contributes to five defined benefit pension plans - the Police and Fire Employees' Pension Plan
of the City of Cranston ("PFERS"), a single-employer plan; the Municipal Employees' Retirement
System ("MERS"), an agent multiple-employer plan; the Employees' Retirement System of the State of
Rhode Island ("ERS"), a cost-sharing multiple employer plan; the National Industrial Pension Plan, a
cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan; and the New England Teamsters & Trucking Industry
Pension Plan, a cost sharing multiple employer plan. The PFERS is presented in the accompanying
financial statements as a fiduciary fund. MERS, ERS, the National Industrial Pension Plan and the New
England Teamsters & Trucking Industry Pension Plan are not included in the City's financial statements.

1. Police and Fire Emplovees® Pension Plan of the City of Cranston (“PFERS”)
a. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

(i) Basis of Accounting

PFERS’ financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
(contributions and investment income) are recognized when they are earned and expenses
(benefits, administration and refunds) are recognized when they are due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan.

(i} Valuation of Investments

Investments are valued at fair value. There are no investments of 5% or greater in any
one organization.

b Classes of Employees Covered
As of July 1, 2006, the plans’ membership consists of:

Fire Police Total
Retirees, disability retirees and beneficiaries
receiving benefits ..o 216 191 407
Active plan members vested ... veernsrsreeneans 61 37 98

Active plan members non vested ..o vvvee e vveeecnenns

=N
B
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. QTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D.

Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)
1. Police and Fire Emplovees’ Pension Plan of the City of Cranston (“PFERS”) (Continued)
¢. Benefit Provisions '

PFERS is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all Police and Fire
Department personnel hired before July 1, 1995. The Plan provides retirement, disability and
survivorship benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. A member may retire after 20
years of service. The pension is equal to 2 %% of the member’s final compensation for each
year of service up to 20 years and increases 2% for each year (up to 10 years) in excess of 20
years. An additional 5% of final compensation is added to the pension at 55 years of age. A
deferred pension is available to employees completing 10 years of service.

Contributions

Police personnel are required to contribute 10% of their base salary to the pension plan and fire
personnel are required to contribute 10.5% of their base salary and longevity to the pension
plan.

d.  Schedule of Emplover Contributions

ANNUAL
PERIOD REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
ENDED CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION, CONTRIBUTION
June 30, 2001 $16,012,994 $12,610,513 79%
June 30, 2002 18,996,537 9,482,990 50%
June 30, 2003 24,945,408 14,949,999 60%
June 30, 2004 21,877,449 23,876,569 109%
June 30, 2005 22,147,958 20,024,158 90%
June 30, 2006 21,723,021 21,339,876 98%

e Actuarial Assumptions

The information presented as historical trend information was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation as of the date indicated in the tabulation. Additional information as of the
latest valuation is as follows:

VALUATION DATE.......ooeeermecienenaeas JULY 1, 2006
ACTUARIAL COST METHOD ........coovcvvreenne ATTAINED AGE NORMAL
ASSET VALUATION METHOD...........cc....... FAIR VALUE
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS:

Investment Rate of Return.......coovveeceivcireanenee 8%
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EXHIBITK
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D. Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)

1. Police and Fire Emplovees’ Pension Plan of the Citv of Cranston (“PFERS”) (Continued)

e Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

PROJECTED SALARY INCREASES:

LY 1<) L RS 3%
Cost-of-living adjustment ...........coovrerrevenees 3%
INFlation ....veceere e e 3%
AMORTIZATION METHOD ................. OPEN
LEVEL DOLLAR
REMAINING AMORTIZATION PERIOD..... 27 YEARS

£ Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation (NPO)

The changes in the net pension obligation of PFERS as of June 30, 2006, were as follows:

Annual required contribution ..........cocoooeeeeiceeeeieeeen. $ 21,723,021
Interest on net pension obligation ........coceovecvciieiicineane 7,128,576
Adjustments t0 ARC.......cvveverermrervnirecermrererisenesnsseseens (8.063,213)
Annual PEnSION COSE ...c.vviveerrererrenrereresarnsrsasessesesens 20,788,384
Contribution MAde..........ecvvevvvesrerrerereereresesesesrererenens (21.339.876)
Change in net pension obligation..........cccoerererereerreneens ( 551,492)
Net pension obligation - July |, 2005 ........ccccvuvvverevinns 89.107.206
Net pension obligation - June 30, 2006.......cccoveveereeene $ 88,555,714

8. Three Year Trend Information

ANNUAL
PENSION PERCENTAGE NET
YEAR COST OF APC PENSION
ENDING (APC) CONTRIBUTED OBLIGATION
2006 $20,788,384 100% $88,555,714
2005 21,303,175 100% 89,107,206
2004 21,077,454 100% 87,828,189
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

. Emplovee Retirement Systems (Continued)
2. Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (“MERS™)

a. Plan Description

Upon the date of hire, all full-time City, non-certified school employees and police and fire
personnel hired on or after July 1, 1995, are eligible to participate in MERS, an agent multiple
employer plan administered by the Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island.
Employees who retire at or after age 58 with 10 years of credited service or at any age after 30
years of credited service are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life. The
retirement benefit is 2% of final average salary, Final average salary is the three highest
consecutive years of earned salary excluding overtime, bonuses or severance pays. MERS also
provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by State Statute. Financial
statements for MERS can be obtained by contacting the Employees’ Retirement System of the
State of Rhode Island, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, RI 02903, or by accessing their website

at Www.ersri.org.

b. Funding Policy

Covered employees are required by Rhode Island General Law Section 45-21-41 to
contribute 6% of their salary to the plan and contribute an additional 1% for a cost-of-living
provision. Annual required contributions are actuarially determined for each separate
employer and are assessed to each as a percentage of their participating employees’ payroll.
The annual required contribution covers normal cost and, where applicable, a payment to
amortize the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
amortized as a level percent of payroll over a close period of 30 years measured from
June 30, 1999. Police contribute 10% and fire personnel are required to contribute 11.5% of
their salary with the excess contribution (1.5%) offsetting the City’s required contribution.
For 2006, the City’s contribution rate for police personnel was 17.12% and 16.32% for fire
personnel, resulting in a net contribution by the City for fire personnel of 14.82%.

¢. Contributions

The City’s contribution rate for general employees was .08%.

YEAR ANNUAL
ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
JUNE30 CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTION
General Employees
2004 $ - $ - 100%
2005 - - 100%
2006 9,541 9,541 100%
Police
2004 $ 620,067 h 620,067 100%
2005 731,118 731,118 100%
2006 823,426 823,426 100%
Fire
2004 3 899,623 5 899,623 100%
2005 996,437 996,437 100%
2006 952,013 952,013 100%
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBITK

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems (Continued)
3. Employvees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (“ERS™)

a.

Plan Description

All full-time teachers including superintendents, principals, school nurses and certain other
school officials (“classified employees™) in the Cranston Public Schools participate in the
ERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public retirement system. ERS provides retirement,
death and disability and health care benefits, all of which are established by State Statute.
ERS issues a publicly available financial statement that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for ERS. That report may be obtained by contacting the
Employees’ Retirement System of Rhode Island, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, RI 02903,
or by accessing their website at www.ersri.org.

Classified employees who retire at or after age 60 with 10 years of credited service or at any
age with 28 years of credited service are entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for
life. The retirement benefit is a percentage of final average salary per year of credited service
with a maximum benefit of 80% of “final average” salary. Final average salary is the three
highest consecutive years of earned salary excluding overtime, bonuses or severance pays. The
percent of earnings related to each year of credited service is as follows:

Years of Credited Service

1-10
11-20

Percent/Year

1.7%
1.9%

21-34 3.0%
35 2.0%

Funding Policy

Rhode Island General Laws set the contribution rates for participating State employees at
9.5% of salary. Annual contributions by both employees and the State on behalf of those
employees are determined by actuaries and assessed as a percentage of participants’ payroll.
Plan members are required by State statue to contribute 9.5% of their salary to the plan. The
School Department contributions are based on a percentage of annual compensation of active
members, half of which is payable by the State of Rhode Island.

Contributions

The School Department's required contributions and actual contributions made for the years
ended June 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 were as follows:

PERIOD ANNUAL
ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
JUNE 30, CONTRIBUTION  CONTRIBUTION  CONTRIBUTION
2004 $ 4,695,431 $4,695,431 100%
2005 5,371,312 5,371,312 100%
2006 6,163,913 6,163,913 100%
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EXHIBIT K

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D.

Employee Retirement Systems (Continued)

4. National (Industrial) Pension Plan

a.

Plan Description

Upon the date of hire, most of the City’s public works' employees and all School Department
bus drivers are eligible to participate in the National (Industrial) Pension Fund, a cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The plan also provides the following types of pensions
which pay benefits to a retired participant during their lifetime and thereafter pay benefits to the
participant’s surviving spouse or other beneficiary: husband-and-wife pension, survivor’s
option pension and 120 certain payments option pension. The Plan also provides for a
widow/widower’s pension. Employees who retire at or after age 62 with at least 5 years of
pension credit and have earned at least one of the years of pension credit during the period that
their employer is contributing to the pension fund are eligible for benefits through the regular
pension that is payable monthly for life. The retirement benefit is determined by the highest
contribution rate at which the employee earned pension credit and the years of pension credits
they have earned (up to a maximum of 30 years of pension credits). The Plan also provides
death and disability benefits. Benefits are established by the Board of Trustees of the Pension
Fund. Financial statements for the Plan can be obtained by contacting the Laborers’ National
(Industrial) Pension Fund, 905 16" Street, N.-W., Washington, DC, 20106.

Funding Policy

Covered employees are not required to contribute to the Plan. The City was required to
contribute $.91 per hour and the School Department is required to contribute $.42 per hour
for each hour worked by the employees to the Plan.

Contributions

Contributions for the past three years were as follows:

YEAR ANNUAL

ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE

JUNE30 CONTRIBUTION  CONTRIBUTION. CONTRIBUTION
City
2004 $ 149,637 $ 149,637 100%
2005 160,312 160,312 100%
2006 132,843 132,843 100%

School

Department

2004 $ 67918 § 67918 100%
2005 68,689 68,689 100%
2006 70,905 70,905 100%
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems (Continued)
5. New England Teamsters & Trucking Industry Pension Plan

a. Plan Description

Upon the date of hire, most workers within City Hall and other clerical staff throughout the City
are eligible to participate in the New England Teamsters & Trucking Industry Pension Plan, a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Benefits under the plan are provided
through a trust fund. A copy of the annual report can be obtained by contacting the trustees at;
New England Teamsters & Trucking Industry Pension Fund, 1 Wall Street, Burlington, MA
01803.

b. Funding Policy

Covered employees are currently not required to contribute to the Plan. The City was
required to contribute $.50 per hour for each hour worked by the employees to the Plan.

¢. Contributions

YEAR ANNUAL
ENDED REQUIRED ACTUAL PERCENTAGE
JUNE30, CONTRIBUTION __CONTRIBUTION  CONTRIBUTION
2004 $ 55835 § 55835 100%
2005 106,045 106,045 100%
2006 160,662 160,662 100%

E. On-Behalf Payments

The amount recognized in the general fund intergovernmental revenues and education expenditures for
contributions made by the State on behalf of the City’s teachers to the Employees' Retirement System of
the State of Rhode Island was $4,041,992.

F. Post-Employment Benefits

The City of Cranston provides post-employment health care and life insurance benefits to all Policemen
and Firemen who retire in accordance with the provisions of their respective contracts. The City pays
100% of the amount of medical health insurance for both Policemen and Firemen until such time as they
secure employment elsewhere with equivalent medical health insurance or until they are eligible for
Medicare or other federally subsidized programs. The City funds post-employment benefits on a pay as
you go basis. During the year ended June 30, 2006, expenditures of $1,527,931 for Policemen and
$1,405,344 for Firemen were recognized for post-employment health care. During the year ended
June 30, 2006, 126 police and 120 fire retirees received benefits under this plan. The City also pays
100% of the full cost of life insurance for both Policemen and Firemen, who retired prior to July 1,
2002, for a policy value of $17,000. The City pays 100% of the full cost of life insurance for Firemen
who retired after July 1, 2002, for a policy value of $20,000. During the year ended June 30, 2006,
expenditures of $8,254 for Policemen and $8,388 for Firemen were recognized for post-employment life
insurance. During the year ended June 30, 2006, 161 police and 176 fire retirees received benefits under

this plan.
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EXHIBIT K
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

IV, OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
G. Restatements
QGovernment-Wide Financial Statements:;

The beginning net assets for the governmental-type activities were restated as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL

TYPE ACTIVITIES
Net assets, June 30, 2005, as previously reported. ........ccovnneee. $( 23,807,078)
Adjustment to record prior year interest receivable on taxes... 1,612,200
Adjustment to record allowance for uncollectible.................... (__ 483.658)
Net assets, July 1, 2005, as restated .......voveeeoeneeeeoreieeeseeeeeas 3 22.678,536)
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODFE ISLAND

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
General property taxes $ 146,288,358 $ 147,783,358 $ 145,906,925 3 (1,881,433)
Intergovernmental 17,158,746 19,451,719 20,709,187 1,257,468
Charges for Services:
Licenses and permits 3,494,091 3,944,091 4,173,394 229,303
Fines and forfeitures 1,439,065 1,439,065 1,540,791 101,726
Departmental 2,052,696 2,052,696 2,221,657 168,961
Investment income 800,000 1,350,000 1,466,659 115,659
Education 37,690,639 37,691,638 37,691,639 1
Other 6,691,547 6,601,547 4,605,407 (2,086,140)
TOTAL REVENUES 215,615,142 220,405,114 218,315,658 (2,093,456)
EXPENDITURES:
Cusrent:
Executive 513,468 513,468 508,803 4,665
City Council 271,227 271,227 185,344 83,883
Law 462,300 552,300 1,221,107 (668,807)
Personnel 196,486 196,486 192,424 4,062
City Clerk 1,377,136 1,477,136 1,420,566 56,570
Probate Court 19,339 19,339 19,137 202
Municipal Court 297,895 297,895 227,706 70,189
Board of Canvassers 150,343 150,343 145,987 4,356
City Planning 356,023 356,023 330,200 25,823
Economic Development 161,543 246,943 168,390 78,553
Finance 3,506,607 3,566,607 3,471,301 95,306
Fire 23,795,244 24,049,244 23,798,356 250,888
Inspections 368,944 505,944 896,104 9,840
Police 16,903,738 17,038,738 16,746,025 292,713
Public works 12,371,904 12,421,904 12,486,760 (564,856)
Parks and recreation 1,794,000 2,079,000 2,094,667 (15,667)
Public libraries 2,776,363 2,776,363 2,776,363 -
Community Grants 140,500 140,500 140,500 -
Senior services 2472321 2,501,321 2,476,360 24,961
Municipal Debt 10,034,096 12,324,039 £2,616,935 (292,396)
Long-Term Debt 18,480,332 18,480,332 18,480,332 -
Boards and Commissions 18,650 18,690 13,066 5,624
Harbor Master 2,692 2,692 2,691 1
Sealer of Weights and Measures 2,692 2,692 - 2,692
Rescue Fund 3,266,500 3,266,500 810,224 2,456,276
Education 115,374,759 116,753,388 116,753,389 {1}
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 215,615,142 220,409,114 217,982,736 2,426 378
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 - § - 332,922 3 332,922

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2005

19,599,361

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2006 § 19,932,283
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE [SLAND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - SCHOOLS UNRESTRICTED

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES:

Intergovernmental;

State $ 33,942,639 $ 33,943,639 $ 33,943,639 $ -
Federal 1,840,000 1,805,817 1,805,817 -

Tuition 1,791,500 1,970,131 1,970,131 -

Carryover 18,152 18,151 (1)

Miscellaneous 129,000 266,528 266,528 -
TOTAL REVENUES 37,703,139 38,004,267 38,004,266 (1)
EXPENDITURES:

Education 115,374,759 117,066,017 116,651,249 414,768
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (77,671,620} (75,061,750) {78,646,983) 414,767
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES:

Transfer in - City appropriation 77,671,620 79,061,750 79,061,750 -
EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES 3 - 3 - 414,767 $ 414,767

FUND BALANCE - JULY 1, 2005

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2006
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Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues from specific taxes and other earmarked revenue sources
which by law are designated to finance particular functions or activities of government and which, therefore,
cannot be diverted to other uses.

Education - This fund accounts for education programs financed with grants from private parties and the federal
and state government, which are restricted as governed by the grant agreements.

Budget Stabilization - This fund was established to elevate requests made in FY06 budget (ordinance specified
items that could be appropriated).

Hospital Stabilization - This fund was established to eliminate future deficits generated by the risks related to
being self-insured for health care.

Community Development Block Grant - This fund accounts for Federal Community Development Block Grants.

Public Service - This fund accounts for public safety activities financed by grants received from private parties
and federal and state agencies.

Restitution - To account for monies received in restitution of charges.

Cultural Services - This fund accounts for parks and recreation activities financed by grants received from
private parties and federal and state agencies.

Public Works - Insurance fund for snow and ice removal costs,

Excise Tax Phase-Out - This fund accounts for excise phase-out receipts received from the State of Rhode
Island.

Governmental Special Revenue - This fund accounts for special grants and non-capital projects.

Economic Development Revolving Loan - This fund accounts for the repayment of principal and interest
payments from commercial loans funded by a grant from the Department of Housing and Urban Development.




Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Capital Facilities Development Impact Fees - This fund accounts for fees charged by the City to real estate
developers. The fees are to be used for infrastructure capital assets.

WIA Job Development - This fund is a joint venture with the City of Providence to help unemployed and
underemployed individuals.

Senior Services - The following funds were established to account for the receipt and disbursement of funds for
specific activities sponsored by the Senior Citizens Center:

RSVP
Multipurpose Center

Adult Day Care
Senior Service Special Project

Capital Project Funds

The Capital Project Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition and/or construction of capital facilities
by the City, except for those financed by the Enterprise Funds.

School Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the construction and improvements to school buildings, and for the
acquisition of equipment for the Cranston School District.

Police and Fire Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the construction and improvements to police and fire stations
and for the acquisition of police and fire equipment.

Public Building Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the construction and improvements of City buildings, and the
acquisition of equipment for City Hall.

Recreation Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the construction and improvements of the City's recreation facilities
and for the acquisition of open space.

Highway Bond Fund - This fund accounts for construction and improvements to roads and highways within the
City.

Storm Drains Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the installation and repair of storm drains within the City.
Neighborhood Infrastructure Bond Fund - This fund accounts for neighborhood improvement projects.

Open Space Bond Fund - This fund accounts for the acquisition of open space.
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NONMAJOR BUDGETARY FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET BASIS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

SCHEDULE 3

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

ORIGINALLY FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE
ADOPTED APPROVED (BUDGETARY WITH
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS) FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
Program Income 3 130,000 b 130,000 $ 365,304 $ 235,304
Federal Grants 1,192,409 1,192,409 1,587,138 394,729
Total Revenues 1,322,409 1,322,409 1,952,442 630,033
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Program Activities 1,322,409 1,322,409 1,974,504 (652,095)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 5 - $ - 5 (22,062) § {22,062}
WORKFORCE INVESTMENT ACT
ORIGINALLY FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE
ADOPTED APPROVED (BUDGETARY WITH
BUDGET BUDGET BASIS) FINAL BUDGET
REVENUES:
Program Income $ 298,157 $ 298,157 3 335,674 3 37,517
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Program Activities 298,157 298,157 315,448 {17,291)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
QVER EXPENDITURES 3 - 3 - 3 20,226 3 20,226
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Fiduciary
Funds

Agency Funds

Agency funds were established to function as clearing mechanisms for cash resources which are collected and
disbursed to authorized recipients. The following is a list of Agency Funds included in this section:

Unclaimed Estates in Probate - This fund was established to account for unclaimed estates that are in probate.

Performance Bonds - This fund was established to account for finds set aside to pay land developers who perform
services for the City.

Student Activity Funds - This fund was established to account for the receipt and disbursement of school student
activity programs.




AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITY

SCHEDULE 4

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2005 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2006
ASSETS

CASH:

Unclaimed estatees in probate $ 141,938 £ 1,039 $ $ 142,977

Performance bonds 337,465 49726 48,887 338,304

Student activity funds 547,555 2,534,946 2,545,140 537,361
TOTAL CASH 1,026,958 2,585,711 2,594,027 1,018,642
INVESTMENTS:

Student activity funds 1,500 31 1,531 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,028,458 $ 2,585,742 $ 2,595,558 $ 1,018,642

LIABILITY
Deposits Held in Custody for Others $ 1,028,458 $ 2,585,742 $ 2,595,558 $ 1,018,642
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SCHEDULE S
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND,

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE BY SOURCE
JUNE 30, 2006
CAPTIAL ASSETS
LANGuriiceeee vt rveve s e e e e s e sassren e e e nrsenns $ 11,062,827
Land improvements..........o.ooiieiiiiiiie i eieeeeias 9,458,613
BUIldINES....cocviiiriiintiinsirrcrne s s snescs s ses s esaes 59,121,582
Machinery and equipment.........cooeenenrincinrcnnconniennnen. 2,653,079
Office furniture and equipment........cocccvveiiinsnicnninnen. 5,151,755
VEhiCleS. . reeireeerrine v rae e ere s e e ceee et e e e e e e e s 14,418,661
11 21 (Dot 111 = 81,676,306
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS. ..o e $ 183,542,823
INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS BY SCURCE
Property tAXES. .. iviieen e i v e e e e e e aee $ 27,531,423
BoOndS. . e 137,657,117
Intergovernmental grants......................o 16,518,854
ContribUtionS. .....ovv vt iirs v e e ra e raaenn 1,835,428
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE ....oorievecreiceeeee v cee e $ 183,542,823
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SCHEDULE 7
CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY I, JUNE 30,
2005 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS 2006
General government.............ccceeoveeee .. $161,654,991 $ 1,051,005 3 426,667 $ 162,279,329
Publicsafety............cconii 9,360,416 571,205 202,976 9,644,645
Public works.........cooooii 3,394,528 885,715 218,777 4,061,466
Education..........cooovmrciiin i 1,939,868 82,170 1,857,698
Parks and recreation...............cccocoivanns 1,688,155 5,209 67,579 1,625,785
Public hibraries...............ccooi e 3,627,541 22,541 3,605,000
Senior services. .. ... .oocoiiiiiiiii i 456,990 11,910 468,900
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS ............... $182,122,439 $§ 2531,044 3 1,110,710 $ 183,542,823

87




Statistical
Section




(L10°16Z°651) $ (662°718°87) % £8L°C66 $ ey 91901 § 9£8°766'ST  § A [eo],

(FITPESTLI) (6T0°LIT°LST) (1¥S°0L6 L6) (66t"001'88) (68L°768°0L) PRIOLOSAIYY
LY T8L Y 9£8° IPb'1 L9T 008 L9Z'00S SHO86I°TIT paoLnsey
1ZL°09L°6T $68°098°0C1 LSO'P9P°86 9ZL'915°86 086°989°GL 1gop paJe[e!l JO 10U ‘sjosse [ejiden ur paysaauf

KD R0,
Z91°850°€T SIS EPEZE ZTHR99°1E TLS'CTH bE 008°SL1°9F sanIanoR adAl-ssoursng [el0 L,

(T¥9°sT1°6¢) (TL8°061°6T) (F¥9°PTL0E) (786°198°LT) (0TL'8LE'ST) pajoLysaun
86618 164078 L9Z°00S £92°005 FTO0EL’T peLsey
OFF PIL 19 9£9°C10°19 66L°T68°19 L8T'S8LTY 968°€T8°TY 193Pp Paje|al JO JoU ‘sjesse [endes ur payssauy

SOHIATIOR onb-mmmﬁmsm

(6L1°6¥E°Z91) (FI8°LSTT9) (6€9°%L9°0E) (8L0°L0B'ET) {r96°T81°02) SOMTANOE [EJUSUITLISACL) [210],

(ZL$°30L7TET) (LS19z9°LT1) (L68°SHE L9) (L15°8€£5°09) (690°F1S°TH) Pa1oLgsaIa()
8I1°€96°C $80°1Z9 120°89%°6 pajoIsey

(sTL'€09°5E)  $ 8STLF8S9  § 8GTILE9E & 6EFIELOE  § F80°€o8Zl  § 195D PAIB[AL JO 12U ‘sjasse [eNded UT pajsaan]

ISONIATIOE [BIUSUIIISAOLD)

88

7002 £00Z ¥00T 5002 9002
AVAX TVOSIA
(@g11anvnmn)
SYVHA TVOSId AIL LSV
INANOJINOD A€ SLASSY 1IN
NV I HdORY NOJISNVID 40 A0

T HIdV.L



(ponuzuo))

I TILE60T 637916 51¢ 019°386°9CC L1 150 EPT 698°LOF EST sasuadxs A1) [B10],
900°THO8 [ S10°65+°91 S9E6LI81 SIS SPE LI 0TFIPH0T sapiapoe adg-ssauisng [e30L
6PEE6ET LOLLYST 99.°88Y°T TOV985°T £F[ 889°C youn| [00yog
205°81 IEM
8TTHLE 066°LSE 8L0°8L 799°60€ 86L°SLT UORPURO,{ JUSWSSBURIA SINI[IOB] JHGRJ
128°50€°51 86TE5SEl 125°219°61 FSHTSOS 1 6LV T8O0°L] lomag
:sap1AnoR adf)-ssaursng
SOT'6ZE 161 PLT LSV 661 SHT60¥'80T €69°T01°52C 6bF 1TV 86T SSHIANOR [RIUSTHWISACD |2I0],
SOL'9LY'E £89°691°¢ 1S8°95T°T 18€°€0T'S 6¥0°TLY'D asuadxs 1sa193u]
089°65%°[ 65L€6T'1 £6T'ELTL L31°909°1 SHPT96'1 wewdo[@Asp AjUNIUKIO])
Z3E°0%0°E SEE'656'T 1¥9°495°T &¥0°H95°T 6£0°119°Z $301AIDS IOIU3S
007655 $E5°799°C 619°06L°C 9L 19LT 969°%T3'T saLeIql oyqng
1Z1°L00°T 0¥ 108°1 L6T'8rR1 910°%650'C PIv'r8E'T UOTEII3I PUB SHIBg
005999401 88803 %11 LES'RIT'SII OLL'SHEETI 658°0LF T 1 uoneanpy
0£0°'Z61'8 S65"3TH'S £86°95CT1 £18°005°C1 66LESET] sy1om SUqng
€86 11E%S 9£8°009°8Y €SLILEL'RS £98°T1Z°19 ¥06°€01°99 f3ayes olqnyg
FOSSIETT 65Z'pS0'P1 & [LEY9ZTL  § OrL°6F3'ST  § PrTRE0'01  § JUSWUIBACE {BISUSD)
”wo_u;_uum MmuﬁoEEus.cU
'SASNAIXH
700T £00T 002 $00Z 9002
AVEA TYOSIA
(agL1IanvyNn
SUVIA TVOSII Al 1SV
S13SSV LaN NI SHONVHD
ANV RTAIOHT"NOISNVAD H0 ALID
(o

cHTIV.L

89



(ponuyuo))

(£69°90L°ZET) (£68°1PSHET) (Z9ZD8LOET) (866'92TH51) {s2£'99.'291) asuadxs Jou Q1) [E}0L
866688 P96'1Z8'E 980'SHL G61°£58' 386°0Z9°1 sanianoe adA-ssauisng
{1s9‘065°¢ET) (L58'coe'seT) (0sgisesLen) (r61°780°05T) (£9¢*L8E°491) SABIALIOR |EJUAWEIAACD
SONUAARI (Sasuadxa) 19N
3SH F99°9L 96 FLE 1S 39£ 303 63 SIT7T888 v6¥F 104706 SANUIABL AN [BI0]
F00'2E6'8T 6L608T°07 £SPPI6 8] 1L 108°61 80¥°L99° 1T sonuaast werdord saptanoe adA1-ssouisng €10
6¥7'9¢8 086°0£0°T SUOYNQLYUOD pue s)rels [ejiden
16¥°988 P19°116 617686 0LE°9ED'T 780°101°1 suonnqLIuos pue sjueld FuneradQ
LE9'9EC 0L¥ 1481 $ELERY'l 08Z°061°1 EPELIV'] youn| {ooyos
8I1'e IRM
191°25¥ 669°61€ 000sy 90€P0E 61¥'LYT UOLIEPUNO,] JustsZeuey sanl[Ised alqnd
L6S°E50°01 961°8L¥ L] 6LY9SH'91 606°€E1°9 1 ¥85°0LE'9[ lamag
'SOD1AIDS 0] SafreN))
sanAnoe odAl-ssausng
YV TELTLS L1¥'E60°19 $68°£88°0L 105°020°69 980°Y£0°69 $9NUA1 WEIE01d SIHIALDE [BJUSWILISACH [BIOL
6Y6 thT 1S0Z¥E 965 711 suonnqIues pue sjueid ende)
E8L°LGESY (A €ELT6S'ES SPI'POL TS SUOHNQLYLICD pue sjueIs Sunersdo
4 B SOUIAROE ISHO)
SO8 I9F°1 SEIPOT' TLOTHE] SITIAISS JOLUG
L86'FT1 YAXATA 005°C8 seure1qgl| 21 qnd
3L8%1T OpEgIT 126'Z61 UGLEa10a1 pUe 318
LST 865y TE8°T66°C 051°292'T £TI61L°T uonesnpg
1LL°011 S8Y6L P9SFT1 y10m ol{gqng
§601€5°T IF19E1°1 87086 181°05T°¢ FECPIE'E Ajayes oryqng
661°6€8°E 95HLOT L ¥TO6LTYT  § RELPGO0T  $ 18L6E€°6 JURWIBAOS [RISUSD
1S301AI8S 10] sadIeyD)
ISOIIATIOR [BJUSIUUISACD
SSHANTATE WVEDOUd
7002 €002 $00T $00T 9002
AVIA TVOSId
{ag11anvyN
SUVIA TvISId AL 1SV'T
S1ASSY JIN NI SIONVHD
ARNVTST ZAOHT " NOISNVED 10D
(€30 7)

ACE AR

90



(papnpouo3)

(£98°805°9) 061 %PS6  § Sl 168cz % 820VI68 8 0%y § $19858 J0U W aFueyd A1) [#I0L
6L5°600°1 98T LIEY (£60°5L9) LS¥'901°C 8TTCSL'] sonranoe odA-ssoursng
(opp'81SL) AN 37T'995°€T 195°£98°9 PLE'S6FT SIALE [BJUSWHLIIACD
'SIASSY LAN NI 3DNVYHD
98L7L619¢1 £80°980°F¥1 L6E 129651 9Z0°£0C £91 LLTFI07LO] A [eol,
186611 Teeshe (181°0ZF'1) TLTE5T Ove 1€1 sanianoe adA1-ssaulsng [el0]
616567 00005+ 1) sI9suel],
136611 EOV 6¥ 618°6C 1LT'E5T oveIEl STUNLES JUSUNSOAUL PAJOLISIIUS}
:sag1anor ad£-ssauisng
C0¢ 8L0°9T1 19L70pSEP1 8151607191 SCL6P6 291 LE6T88°90] SONIALOE [BIUSLILLISAOLD) [BJO],
(616°C61) 00005+ 1 sigjsuer],
358°806°F $NOSUR||SOSIIA]
669°LTE 056'9HE £99°LLY FPO°E0T1 £ES°ETET SEUIUIED JUIULSIAUL PIIOLHSIIU[]
1L£°299°T 6VE868°T 398°562°¢ 0L9°661°E Sutreys onuaasl 9315
007°665°S suresoxd
oi10ads 03 Pa)OIISa 10U SUOHNALIUOD PUE SIUBID)
LLTGLI8IT I$€°16L°0F1 §  LSO'0LB'SSI § IPO'LPS RS §  POT096°8ST § Lo pue soxey Aadosd
SONUSASY [RISUSD
:SONIATIOR [BJUSLIALIZAOD)
'SLASSY 1IN
NI SEONYHD ¥gZH.LO ANV SANNIATI TvIaENgD
00T €002 $00T S00% 900T
AVAA VIS
{ggi1anyN
SUVIA TVOSId JALd 1SV']
S1ASSV LAN NI SEONVHD
ANTISTHUO I " NOIRNVYD J0 AL
(£30¢)

cAIdvVL

o



{ror'eeL’t) % (co8'0cc’sT) % 0E0 TIP3 § 9O PITPE  $ LES'SFO'RE § TVIOL ANVED
{zTr's6z°9) (LELLTO1T) L6 TIE L] S89°FZ9'p1 PLTEIL'3E SpUN, [BJUSUILIDACL) IO [V [EI0L,
(S£1°80£°21) (080°L99°1T) 69F P T 80Z°8€T'1 1L0°968°C1 spury j03foxd rende)
656°8¥6°S 6LLETH Y 600°6S1°8 F81°69T°C1 816k ST SpUIY SUUIASI [e[0adg
;1 papodar ‘paatesaruf)
¢ c (]
(5£5°148°7) (STLE61°%) AL AT 896°L99 000006 PoIeUSISap ‘PIATSAIU)) N
682°SE6°T 6LT 60V TSSOLL SOL 6¥Y 120°89%°6 poAISay
SpUn,] [EJUSWHLISACD) IO Y
(6L9°9TH'1) $L3°9LOC 8607860791 19£°665 61 €37°TL661 puny [eIamuag) [e0]
(80S PST'v) 890°SOF'S 250°860°91 19€°665 61 £87°7¢6'61 PRAISSII()
6T8°LTOE $ 908°11¢ $ $ $ $ paatasay
pun,g [eIsuan
7002 £00Z #00T €002 9007
AVEA TVOSLI
(qai1anvNm
SUVHA T¥OSII AT ISV
SANN TYINTWNITAOD ‘STONVIVE AN
TNV IS IO NOISNVHD 40 X110

EATdV.L



*spun,] paford [ede]) U SpUR] 3nudAsy |3adS 'pund JRRUSD BUL Jo sy puadxa SapnauL dNpayas sIyT (1)

— s — — o —— manma
%L %L'S %6F %L’y %8 %9t %8t %9'c %t Tt %Ly sumpuzdae reideoucy
Jo 98z1usauad B 5B 2014338 109(]
v 0L s 000eEELl S 00O8TPT) 3 O0SBSTE 3 (PLPOGULI 5 LICO 10RO S (OLBLILT SEEOPPEP § SIBEIRS 5 IS 1TE bT saoue|Rq Py L AFuys LN
- QS I9'ET - ODDEEO'ST 126841 SEVICET (T9¥060°C) E8E 1269 L0L8sp € WLOELT bT (sasm}
530unes SWIUEULY 10 13N
loo0™9TE sy (000'6TR ES) [GEERT] (L86'SES 55) (8TTTIT 8O} TITSLIEL) [TISEIFLey (68¢°L68'88) [XTTAT] NG S1RjsuRl],
6E0'LPI'T) 000'55L"1Z) 1T MOI959 01 193p 3O wsLieday
000°10k'$§ CO0'6ES'[S il s LB6'STE'SE 8TT1TY T6T'I86°0L EPTLIF98 68T'LER'SE LTEOOL'YE u ssgarery,
9T ETS'T LS0'S0L Tuises) woy spesansd
wY'LLR LOEEES'T VLO'ELT winyzaid puogy
000'0PS'LL 000'£70's1 000'0zE'E 1 000'D$0'LT 000°08T'CC 000'006°€T 192p Jo SouEnss]
i(sosn} seaanos Juiauzuy 110
TorEan 1600'Z8c ) (000 8Zr T} LCO'SLY 1) GpreLcit) ST EI0G) (006 e5 &) SoU6LE 91 GOLPSEE LES'LYT smipusdxd
1320 SHIA JO $523xT
$0T 860 Th] 000685 15T 000°S6E 001 OO ZLL9L1 TLUPOES( €49 T0ST6H 0L0°955'S1T LGS LT [Ie'sey'9ce €07 [SE +ET samupuadie m0g,
LO09'L 000°658°L 000615 000'898°L S99°LEED PO 6558 OPYEREL S80°6EE'S STL665 0 LYV Y6 6 AR 1G]
TER'061E 000'859't 000'681'E 000'T01°6 6O1'5L8'S 855'S00°L LSI'FLY'0L gIECsy'y SCO'LLE'L 64T'6TT'E Aepno (edes)
6IE'8LTT 000'9€9'6 000'1TE'01 000'6b6"S1 082'28E'01 00F'L8L'6 00L'Tr1'8 65L'0LY 188'1LL LSE'951 20
SEL'EGT'] E6Z'ELT'L £81'909"1 pOS L6l watdejaadp Alununucsy
T66'E88'C PPP'EDS'T GLL'ORE'T 6T8'9LE'T SIS IoRIST
L1T859°C 608°659'T 086'069°T £SE'TTRT sapeiql] aqng
PEI'SLLN ISS'0EL’ | 18E'SH6"1 9L9'LPE'T USHERIIAL PUE ST
STHGRSLL 000'9LE'T 000'90E°98 DOD'EQL' 16 9LS'EOE'86 9S9°0L0°501 99L'STTPII LSERISPII LEY'SIIET] 9L6' IHS'8T1 ucyEanpg
TEUCILE $20IM0SH UREN
SEG'TLE'S 000°911°6 0O0'SEE'S O00'E6E'S PCE'PLL'S 00°00F"8 PPEERTS S10°081° 1 HP'Treel 094°984°T1 SU0A AR
SEFELY'EE 000'P80°€E 000'S95'CE 000°6TL"LE 98¢'9L6'TP 869'L6SER LI8'60T'8P PER'TOSLS PPE'SLLGS PTOOED 19 Ages anqng
6L0'SE8'Y 000'08L'Y 000" H58'S 000 1£€°S TLLYST'S LOT'[90°01 YSL'FILTY 000'€L1'6 BILLET'S WtuuEA0d Rsus
RUZTT oY
ssenipudxg
SO8°LR0°CrI COO'LOEOFL 000°29L4°LS1 [ LTG80F991 98t 65+ €81 0LT'SEOEIT WLy ize [ E{IATA ObE 668 HET SINUIAI [E10],
TSEBFIS GOC'SF6'S 000°ER0'EL 00808 1 TES99 LI 1LLTEEST SEI'E8I'0T SLLLPT 8L EEEA SOFTSTE SN 2N
DIF'III'E 886'161'T £LYF6I'T TssuLeda
$91E0L 000°881°1 00'rIT'l 000°Z9%'1 [1+'0Z8 669'LEE 056'0v¢ YIE'6bh PIS'FOI'L TG TIT'T HUIUGEIAUL U0 IS
1E8°FbE 000'558 000'ssT'y 000°'8€6 0ZS'THI'L TLE'tre Leh'ssl'l 1PB'LTL'] £91'089'1 sizauwied
27| UO ISIEINUL pUE SIULY
£61'691°1 000'F6L 0O0'SHE'[ 000'552°1 L1E'655°1 $£5'889'1 0BTLTI'T SEE'96IE E15'6E9°E syuwad pue sasuadlg
0E1'09% 1 Sa1As 10f saimyy
189'S0€°0E 000'[65'SE COUTLSHLE 000'ETEY'9Op 0£0'6E9" LY OIF'TE9'ES P81°00T'SS €9T'EIV'6S 950°954°19 611'39L'69 anu3A31 [exRuRAciiof
TPE'CIG'E0L 5§ ODD'EEG'ION § COOESE0NT $ 0DO'TTE'EOI § S0S"0VS'E01 § ESS'P9C°801  § P8 188'0€ 1 LSO'PRF'EPT S ThbL89%9p1 SZ6'006'Sk | saxT) Apadosg
ISINURARY
£661 866§ 666 000t 160% fisiird £00T 00T S00T 500Z
UVEA TVYOSIL
(gairEnvan)
(1) SUVIA TVISId NIL LSV

SANNA TYINAWNIIACD ‘HINVTVE NS NI STONYHD

TRV ST ITOR T ROISHYID 30 ALTS

93



o
=8
ottty 1811} ) taf Wds sea Luadoud |ear a0y TEIWSSISSE Y\ G WL UL {T)

i 10] HOUINPIP MO PAYAL S junowe st010y  {])

9880 OFS'sEF'SaL'Y SLO'TEHT6E'S SLG'L9Y'SEE ar T st SLE'L99'SYR $95°L18'6T6'S Bt 006'6T6'656 34 00Z'CEF'961' 0T

060 TH'90L 509 FS9'TLE'LER'S SL'REO"PEL £k 4 33 VLSBT RGL 067 L99C1Y'S Y 006'96£'056 s CO0'LEETST'Y $007

0560 189'91L'sp1°9 LYB0EH'RER'S LP'R6'LRL 91 ty e LP'569'L8L PEO'RIRLEES oy 0OE'1SE'6T6 S 4 006'085°0T1'Y 00T

290 $6L'861'SRS'S 850'0LK'68E"Y B95'I0EE9L 6E [ 33 #9S'THEGL OET'SLOELRY ViN ViN e 0O5'L0T'97SE £007

$IL0 $95'106'96%°S GLOE0L'TS1Y GEL'TEY'STL [ 4 T € BEL'TV9'9TL 9Z6'892°0LL'Y VIN VIN 3 DOB'SLY LYY 2002

090 9LLTLL06L'S S60'TEH'9S0'Y S69'S57°0L9 St T o $69'592°0L9 180°L01°07L'y ¥iN VIN 3% 0OP'GIL'STH'E 1002

2080 935'089'920'S 969'E51'650' 965°02E'TLY 6T [ [43 963°02E'TLY 046'6LE"PE0Y ViN wiN 3y DOI'CENLBEY 007

6680 [LTL0S'0RE 'Y GIS'SOD'LY6"T GIP'PTTLRS WIN it 43 SIH'PTZ LSS TSRTRTE6L L WiN vIN [4% 0O ['ESL'6PEE 6661

Lb6'0 SELHOT'EO0Y ISPELLERR'E 15H'T6L 158 VN 44 43 1SH'T6L'1SS SRETIVIESE WIN viN [33 0O00'ETE' 6 2661

£96°0 L9L'IERILEE s [ FARTAN 1 ILE'TI6%5ES & win 4 [y 1L6'T16'505 § LISCEYE S WiIN ¥IN T OTHOTEIEE  § L1661
ANIVA TVYNLIOY QILVINLLST 2NT¥A TYNLOY (E)INTvA QISSISSY  ANTYATVIELOY  ANOLNEANI TIJHIA HOLOW  TIHIONYL () 3n1va ANT¥A TYNLIY AAIVIXVYL (D ENTYAQIsSASSY  TLVA XYL (1} anIva '0E INAS
TV10L 01 A955358Y aaLviNILSa JILVINLESE 1YY X¥L IVE XYL LYY XYL GH55I58Y adL¥HILS Rhek: i (4] TVIDHININOD x4 aISTASSY Qa8

IFLOL 40 O11¥H LI34Ia 133410 1334Ia Hvaa
AR KLU2201d TWNOSHId A1d9d049d 1v3%
(aaianyan
(1) SE¥TA TvISE NAL LSV
ALHTION A1AVXVL 0 ANTVA T¥N LIV AILVINILSE ANV d3553SEY
TNV IS IO ROV ES SO0y

TTTAVI



"0€6°$S6'Z01 €% JO 1517 puesD 2]qexe) 19u 8 uo paseg (7)
"631'480°L09'6S JO 18T pumIg) djqexet 1au o o paseq (1)

‘JusuIeda(] JOSSISSY UMB] (3N0S

SheL 8 LEOOLGPEL S %605 “STTLELFOE 5 V10l
%020 6 000°2L00°8 Jofedxu] fenplaipu sonnby [eloueul] paleaedfeury
%ZT0 L 57T'L99'8 dlmsy ey SAIBIOOSSY 190G UCSIALY
Y%ETD 9 61L'1¥6'3 oSy w0y an[easadng - “aul JMH
%90 < 7ET'902'01 Qesy [eay doyg % doyg - "o Ajesy fejddy
Y%6T ¥ 00862811 o1eIsy (B0 47T spoop, weuag
%60 I 0EZ'616'9€ Auadoad jerarsunuol) AuedwioD A2ne|d grq/p T sewoy], * £opiefq
%ZT0 3 000'009'8 %920 o1 026°609'S1 Ayun e AR A SOUIPIAGLY
%980 £ 160'086'€1 %LT'0 6 06L'TSE'91 Annpy seo Aueduio)) sep pur|3ug MoN
- %0E'0 g oot'ErI‘gl Juatuafeuey 2915y B Auadolg yreg souspuadapug
- %EE'0 L £09'190'0Z SIBMPIBY (FE10Y SoMOY
%T50 z 029'6140T %TH0 9 00E'TE0'ST A anoelg ompaly uasuedeLren
- %90 S 09TLIL'LT SUONEIIUNUIIO]) 3198 “ou] SUGHEIUAWWIOS) X0T)
- %60 14 001°Z95'6Z wawadeuepy 21815d 1894 apmiIRd Aomalg
%0T0 ol 00'568'L %LED £ PIEOLE'YE wsuraBeuyy sFuisy (pey sopadoag swasg
- %E60 z 9E6'9LPSS wowradeuepy ayelsy [ey '2u] 9PISPOOA ABMIIED
- g %b0'l I £06'204°T9 y wauradeusyy 2jeisg |8y payy ojeuoidie)
(?) 1511 GNVYED MNVY IVIVA (1) LSIT aNVID SNV ANTVA SSANISNE AWVN
FTAVXVYLLAN aI4ssASSY FIEVXVL LAN a3ssASSY J0 TINLYN
FDVINIIEAL ADVINIINIL
L66T 9007
AVAA IST1aNveD
(I LIANYNM

QOV SAVIA ANIN ONV AVIA INTFIND
SYIAVIXVL ALdId0Ud TVIONTEd

INVISTIdOHT NOISNVHD 10 ALTD

95



"Apadord argexe; Jo g00' 1§ Jod e ([t s,umo], s siuasaidsa sty (1)

spodal jipne umog, Hesin iy
%67 TTRELY %9'66 S61°PSE P 998'05+'[ %9°86 6TL'E06'TYI 65F 0L Y 900z
%8'T LyP'oY6's %E'66 ¥O1°569°1¥1 6T0°05T'E %¥°86 $LO'SOFOVL 10Z'¥69°TF 1 £00T
%I'T Tor'618'E %101 Lb1'86T3¢C1 L00€TT'E %8°86 OF1'SLOSET FE1'95L'9E1 002
%701 FIE'901'C1 %<'86 LELTET'LTI SIH IPSI %EL6 126069571 L9L'6L1'6TL £00Z
%9°€1 Fl1's0F'vI %8LE £1Z'89¢°¢01 Z16'6L9 %IL6 10£°885°Z01 108" vP9*c01 2002
%6°'S 155°010'9 %1001 191'388°101 £95'€9L' %86 269%Z1°001 PPSE9L 101 100T
%¢E°§ LESPEY'S %E7°66 19429101 ¥0STS1'E %T'96 LSTTLY'86 LAB'EIET0I 0002
%8t TTE'SI6Y %186 EIT'TLO'00T $9L'881°1 9%6'96 6PE'E16'R6 [ZAN a0l 6661
%89 000°¢689 %85°L6 S08'0L8'86 $08°STh %116 100°15%°86 655'19¢°101 8661
%89 $99°€9L"9 $ %L'06 1+T'9£1°101 TEO'VES'] %T$6 602°209'66 g LOT'6E9"P01 L661
AATT SEXV.L AATT SYVAA TIV avaA daLoaTIoD SNOLLDITIOD AATTIXVL 0€ ANAC
XVLIVLOL ININONITIA XV.LTvIOL gILIITIOD LNTHUND SIXVL XYL aaLsnrav qaand
QL SZXV.L ONIANVY.LS1N0O 01 gaL3aT1IoD SIXVYL LAN SNOILO3TTOD LNTNS 40 AATT INTTEND TV.IOL AVHA

LNANONITIA XvLIVIOL TV.LIOL Xv.L ININONIIA FOVINIIL LIN

40 FJOVINAIIAL A0 SOVINIDYId 1IN
(@aLIanyNn
SHVIA NAL LSV

Iamavl

SNOILLJETI0D HSVO ANV SHIATT ‘SHLVYE XVE

TRV ISTITOHT ROISNVID 30 X110

926



"SJUSWESLElS [EISUEUY 21 0] SOI0U SU UI pUNoJ 2q ued 1qap Juipueisino sumo] ot Jupiedas symag FLON

97

8TL'E ViN 020°59L°66 PRIEPS'TI PRL'CER'L 000018 9£9°1Z1°'88 9£8°95t'Y 00058968 9002
L00'E i THE98Y 08 LI6'ET'TL LIG'ETL'L 000'001'y STY'T99'89 STHTTE'S 000'0vE'€9 5002
860'¢ WiN 6T8bOP'18 PRY'Z06'S PoLESY 000'SLE'Y SPE'TOSTL SPETOT'Y 00009599 $00Z
961'T iN 606°$6£'95 £08'C0L"L SI6'6TL'T 000'0¥9'+ LEV'SEE 9550606 00F'$90'L 951'570'TH £002
1897 ¥iN L86'C6R'T9 £80'8EE'8 SYE'IE6'T 000'068't BEFLIS'T POE'L5S'ES 0ST°65p'L PS1'860'9 7002
86LT ¥IN 99.'9£0°69 955'8L0'11 008 1E1°¢ 000'0ET'S 950°L18°T 0IT'096'LS 809'901"'L TFS'ESR'0S 1002
£85'C VIN 104 17K 09 10£°48€°L 009'e62'E FOI'P60'Y © o 000'ED'sS 000'8LE'E 000'91L'€S 0007
PSTT ¥iN 000°£L06°28 000'001'6 000°95L'T 000'rHE'G 000'208'€Y 000'0Zs'1 000'L8T'TH 6661
9£9'T ViN Q00'E1£'68 000'veL'01 000'816'C 000'908'2 000'685'8Y 000'00s"1 000'680°LY 8661
889'C ¢ VIN 060°Crs'9s 8 oe0'veL'el S 000°080°¢ § § 060'vFOEl ¢ 000'818'6E S 000'ZLET § 0o0'gpr3e 1661
hANE L) FWOONI TVLOL TVLOL SALON NOLLVAIDILIVd SANOE TYLOL $as5va1 SaNog 0E INNC

¥dd TYNOSHEL 40 YILYAM 10 NOILYDITIO IVLIAYD NOLLYDITEO QIaNE

1830 AOV.LNIONIL NVETD SALVOLAILYED TYYANTD TYHENAD UVIA
VIOL SHILIAILOV AdALSSANISNE SALIALLOY TV.LNAWNIAADD
(@aLianvnn
SYVIA NAL 1SV

' JdAL A 1990 ONIAONVYLSLNO 40 SOLLVY

TRV ST ITOHT NOISNVED 30 X113



TABLE 9

LITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

RATIOS OF GENERAL DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

GENERAL DEBT QUTSTANDING

PERCENTAGE OF
YEAR GENERAL ACTUAL TAXABLE DEBT

ENDED OBLIGATION CAPITAL VALUE OF PER

JUNE 30 BONDS LEASES TOTAL PROPERTY CAPITA
1997 3 38,446,000 1,372,000 b 39,818,000 1.03% 3 533
1998 47,089,000 1,500,000 48,589,000 1.25% 649
1999 42,287,000 1,520,000 43,807,000 1.11% 584
2000 53,716,000 1,318,000 55,034,000 1.36% 724
2001 50,853,542 7,106,668 57,960,210 1.42% 730
2002 46,098,154 7,459,150 53,557,304 1.28% 669
2003 42,025,156 7,065,400 49,090,556 1.14% 606
2004 66,360,000 6,202,345 72,562,345 1.24% 889
2005 63,340,000 5,322,425 68,662,425 1.16% 837
2006 83,685,000 4,436,836 88,121,836 1.47% 1,080

NOTE: Petails regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
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TABLE 10

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

JUNE 30, 2006

(UNAUDITED)
Assessed value 3 5,892,031,075
Less: exemptions (384,946,886)
NET TOTAL TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE b 5,607,084,189
Debt limit - 3 percent of total assessed value 3 168,212,526
Amount of debt applicable to debt limit:

Total bonded debt -
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN § 168,212,526

Note:  The City has no debt issues outstanding under the Maximum Aggregate
Indebtedness provision (3% Debt Limit} - Rhode Island General Law 45-12-2.
All other City debt has been incurred through special statutory authority which
consists of approval by the legislature and voter referendum, .

The State Legislature may by special act permit the City to incur indebtedness

in excess of the three percent (3%) limit in accordance with Rhode Island General
Law 45-12-11. The City of Cranston has never requested authorization under the
Authority for the issuance of Indebtedness Excess - Rhode Island General Law
45-12-11.
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TABLE 11

CITY OF CBANSTON, RHODE ISTAND

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN YEARS
YEAR NET DEBT LEGAL

ENDED DEBT APPLICABLE DEBT

JUNE 30 LIMIT TO LIMIT MARGIN
1997 65,816,306 $ - $ 65,816,306
1998 66,540,408 - 66,540,408
1999 93,088,678 - 93,088,678
2000 93,672,789 - 93,672,789
2001 93,797,178 - 93,797,178
2002 95,374,621 - 95,374,621
2003 100,615,221 . 100,615,221
2004 166,419,556 - 166,419,556
2005 165,502,160 - 165,502,160
2006 168,212,526 - 168,212,526
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED}

TABLE 14

FUNCTION / PROGRAM

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

2006

2005

2004

GENERAL GOVERNMENT-

MaYOr... ..ot e e e
City Couneil..........oooooiiiii e
Information Technology............c.v v

Department of Persennel... ...........

City Cletkenn oooreooo
Probate Court... ............oo i

Munictpal Court..........

Board of Canvassers.........
City Planning ... ... ocoveivniii e

Economic Developmen
Finance ............

Division of Accounting & Control ...... ...

Division of Assessment ... .......

Divison of Contracts & Purchasing ...... ...
Division of Treasury & Collection ..........

POLICE:

Civilians.....................
Canine Conirol...

Traffic SaBey..... ..o

FIRE:

Chief ...
Uniformed... ... ...oocooiiiii
Civilians... ..o

INSPECTIONS ... ....oivviis i e e

PUBLIC WORKS:
Administration............co e
Engineering.........
Highway..................

Fleet Management............ .. coovvve e e

PARKS AND RECREATION....................
PUBLIC LIBRARIES ...
SENIOR SERVICES ... ..o
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT... ... ...... ...
EDUCATION... ...,

SOURCE: Town Budget
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2,341

2,384
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TABLE 15

CITY OF CRANSTON, RHQDEISLAND

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
FUNCTION / PROGRAM 2006 2005 2004
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Fire:
Total incidents..........oo oo i e e 11,872 12,144 12,019
Rescuefmedical calls... ... ... 10,706 10,973 10,721
Rescuemon-medical calls... ... oo 1,166 Li71 1,298
Police:
Number of calls... ... NIA N/A N/A
Total 911 calls received.. . NiA N/A NfA
Formal investigations... ... .o oo vovvvn s covaanarrvee s N/A N/A N/A
TOWN CLERK:
Number of documents recorded... ... ..ol N/A N/A N/A
HEALTH AND WELFARE:
Number of food service facilities inspections.......... N/A N/A N/A
New homes built. ... e e N/A NiA N/A
LAND USE:
Total subdivisions approved.............oooveeee e N/A N/A N/A
Total commercial applications approved............. N/A N/A N/A
BUILDING:
Residential permits issued... ... 73 150 147
Commercial permits issued..........ooeeeen it 19 8 10
Total permits... ... oo e e 92 158 157
PUBLIC WORKS:
Highway department
Streets {miles) ........
Paved Town roads. 315 313 313
Paved State roads.. 64 64 64
Private roads............coo e vir e N/A N/A N/A
Roads under construction {maintained
BY TOWI eecoeee e i e e e NA N/A N/A
Sidewalks (miles) ....................... N/A NiA N/A
Water depariment
Water mains (miles)..........cooooi v et
Fire hydrants... ... .. coovvnvvvenin e e e ie e 1,914 2,156 1,850
Storage capacity
(thousands of gallons)........c.cooooviennnnnnne N/A NA N/A
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CITY OF CRANSTON, RHODEISLAND

OPERATING INDICATCRS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN YEARS

TABLE 15

(UNAUDITED}
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
FUNCTION / PROGRAM 2006 2005 2004
EDUCATION:
Enrollment:
High School Grades 9-12.......oovvvivvinieieeenes 3,646 3,633 3,514
Middie School Grades§-8................ 2,672 2,707 2,764
Elementary Schools GradesK-5.................. 4,614 4,759 4,944

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

SOURCES: Various Town Departments

(1) Information not available due to the construction and consolidation of schools and related grade levels.

N/A - Information not available
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TABLE 1
CLLY. OF CRANSTON, RHODE ISLAND
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30
FUNCTION / PROGRAM 2006 2005 2004
VE VITIE
PARKS AND RECREATION;
Acreage (includes all open space)
Parks and Public Squares..........ccooooieeea, 10 10 10
MArAS. .. ... oo e e e e e 3 3 3
Playgrounds. ... . 35 35 35
Walking fracks......coeee i ieiii e 7 7 7
Basketball courts..........cocooieiieiieeen e 21 21 17
Tennis cours... .. 24 24 24
Basebalt fickds, 27 27 27
Softball fields.. 11 11 11
Other fields..... 22 22 22
Iee Rink... ... - 1 1 1
Stadivm and FIE]C] House“...................... H 1 1
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Firz Stations 6 6 ]
Fire alarm boxes...........ooovvviiiiienniiiinnis 149 139 146
Police department:
Stations... 4 4 4
Animal Conl.rol Bu:ldmg ...................................... 1 1 1
PUBLIC WORKS:
Highway department:
Streets (mes .. i e i
Sidewalks (miles)...........ooveeeiii i,
Water department:
‘Water mains (miles)...
Fire hydrants. .. 1,914 2,156 1850
Storage capm:nty (thousands of gallons) .......
PUBLIC LIBRARIES:
MNumber of transfer stations
EDUCATION:
Number of High Schools...................oo... 2 2 2
Number of Middle Schools... 3 3 3
Number of Elementary Schools. 18 9 19
Number of Charter Schools..... . 1 i 1
Number of Adult Education Buildings........... i 1 1
SENIOR SERVICES:
Senior Citizens Center.............oovvv e venne. 1 1 i
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT:
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES
SEWER FUND
Sewer mains {miles)...
Treatment capacity (thousands of ga]]ons)
Sewerage D!sposa] Plant..........cooeiei s 1 1 1
Pumping Statiens. .. 22 22 22

SOURCES: Various Town Depariments
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